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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: My name is

          3  Archie Spigner, Chair of the Council's Committee on

          4  Housing and Buildings.

          5                 On May 27th this Committee took a

          6  major step forward in addressing the issue of

          7  elevator safety in our City. We held a hearing about

          8  our recently released report, Uneasy Ride: A Review

          9  of Elevator Safety in the City of New York, and

         10  heard the insightful testimony of national elevator

         11  safety experts, representatives from the City's

         12  elevator and real estate industries, and leaders of

         13  elevator-related unions.

         14                 We also considered several aspects of

         15  legislation prompted by the report that would remedy

         16  some of the elevator safety issues we are continuing

         17  to discuss today.

         18                 As the report finds, and the

         19  legislation reinforces, real improvement of our

         20  City's elevators requires a concerted effort on the

         21  part of the Department of Buildings, DOB.

         22                 Today DOB has taken an important step

         23  by appearing in front of this Committee. Though our

         24  report contains several criticisms of DOB's Elevator

         25  Division, I want to emphasize that we did not write
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          2  this report to embarrass DOB or any other entity.

          3  This Committee recognizes the severe understaffing

          4  and insufficient resources that DOB's Elevator

          5  Division has operated with in recent years and

          6  realizes that these factors impede thorough elevator

          7  inspection practices.

          8                 As such, we do not intend to use

          9  DOB's appearance here as a platform for undue

         10  criticism.

         11                 We have only one goal here today,

         12  which I know DOB shares, achieving the highest

         13  possible practical level of safety for our City's

         14  elevator riders.

         15                 This is a worthy goal, and I want to

         16  thank the witnesses from the Department of Buildings

         17  and other organizations that are appearing today.

         18  Your testimony will bring us one step closer to

         19  improving the safety of all New Yorkers.

         20                 Sitting at the table I see Mr.

         21  Visconti, who is the Acting Commissioner of the

         22  Department of Buildings.

         23                 Commissioner Visconti, would you

         24  identify yourself and those sitting with you who

         25  will be testifying and we will be delighted to
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          2  receive your response to the Committee's report and

          3  Intro. No. 562-A.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Thank

          5  you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Chairman Spigner,

          6  and members of the Committee. My name is Richard

          7  Visconti, and I am the Acting Commissioner of the

          8  Department of Buildings. With me this morning is

          9  Barry Cox, to my right, our Deputy Commissioner for

         10  Operations and Administration, and Marilyn Singer,

         11  to my left, our Executive Director for Central

         12  Inspections.

         13                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         14  comment on the recommendations in your report on

         15  elevator safety, as well as the proposed

         16  legislation, Intro. 562-A.

         17                 Elevators are by far the safest means

         18  of mechanical transportation --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Commissioner

         20  Visconti, do you have written copies of your

         21  testimony?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, we

         23  do, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The Committee

         25  members who are present, Council Member Nelson,
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          2  Council Member Provenzano, and myself and Council

          3  Member Boyland, would be delighted to have copies so

          4  we can keep up with your testimony.

          5                 Excuse me, Commissioner, you may

          6  continue.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

          8  Elevators are by far the safest means of mechanical

          9  transportation in New York City. The Elevator World

         10  Vertical Transportation Industry Reports that to

         11  chance getting hurt in an elevator ride is one in 12

         12  million, far less than any other means of transit.

         13                 The typical elevator makes 500 trips

         14  a day at speeds of between four to 14 miles per

         15  hour.

         16                 For the 54,000 elevators under the

         17  jurisdiction of the Buildings Department, that

         18  equates to more than 27 million rides each day, and

         19  the number of accidents which result is consistently

         20  low, about 45 accidents each year.

         21                 Moreover, statistics show that the

         22  number of accidents in any time period is unrelated

         23  to the frequency of inspections. This fact is

         24  acknowledged by the Council in Intro. 562-A, which

         25  reduces the frequency of inspections from five every
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          2  two years to two each year.

          3                 Prior to your report, the Buildings

          4  Department implemented a series of changes to

          5  improve the elevator inspection process. We

          6  appointed an executive director with extensive

          7  experience in management and enforcement to oversee

          8  the day-to-day operation of the Elevator Division.

          9                 Background checks are now made during

         10  the hiring process to identify individuals who may

         11  be vulnerable to corruption.

         12                 The base salary of an inspector was

         13  raised from $32,389 to $37,717, an increase of 14.29

         14  percent, in an attempt to attract more quality

         15  inspections.

         16                 The work day for an inspector was

         17  extended from seven hours to eight, and increased

         18  productivity has resulted.

         19                 As we restaff the division, the

         20  Buildings Department has contracts with three

         21  carefully screened private elevator inspection

         22  companies to perform inspections on the City's

         23  behalf.

         24                 Over 60,000 inspections have been

         25  made and the Department spotchecks and audits these
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          2  inspections. Almost every elevator in our

          3  jurisdiction is inspected once a year. We

          4  promulgated a rule that will expedite the inspection

          5  appointment scheduling process, and increase

          6  inspector productivity.

          7                 As an anti-corruption mechanism, we

          8  rotated inspectors and supervisors to new districts

          9  so familiar relationships don't develop with certain

         10  building managers.

         11                 I would like to briefly comment on

         12  several recommendations contained in the report.

         13                 We certainly agree that the

         14  Department should encourage professionalism and job

         15  development in the Elevator Division, that is why we

         16  have sent inspectors to Tennessee and Cleveland to

         17  attend seminars on elevator and amusement ride

         18  safety. Bethlehem Rope and Cable Corporation

         19  recently conducted a training session at our

         20  Department, and other seminars are routinely made

         21  available to our people.

         22                 We agree that performance-based

         23  management strategies to improve the quality of

         24  inspectors' work should be utilized. To that end,

         25  supervisors double-check inspectors work in the
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          2  field on a random audit basis, as well as appear at

          3  inspection locations, unannounced, to evaluate an

          4  inspector's work in the field.

          5                 We are expanding our Program

          6  Management Analysis Unit that will conduct audits in

          7  all divisions of the agency to improve operations,

          8  and we agree that our Investigations, Audit and

          9  Disciplinary Unit should have an elevator inspector

         10  assigned to it.

         11                 Regarding inadequate staffing in the

         12  Division, we are aggressively recruiting. Even with

         13  the higher salaries we can now offer, however, it is

         14  very difficult to compete with a booming

         15  construction industry that can offer significantly

         16  higher dollars.

         17                 With respect to elevator accident

         18  reporting, owners and contractors must be encouraged

         19  to report accidents and the Department will reach

         20  out to the Police and Fire Departments, Housing

         21  Authority and Office of Emergency Management to

         22  develop a protocol to help assure that accident data

         23  is shared.

         24                 We must also distinguish an accident,

         25  where there may be damage to life or property, from
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          2  an incident where neither occurs.

          3                 Lastly, we agree with the concept of

          4  licensing those individuals who install, maintain,

          5  repair or inspect elevators, as well as developing

          6  an improved method to evaluate and test the

          7  knowledge of those applying for such a license.

          8                 That is why the Department issued an

          9  RFP in March to retain a qualified vendor to

         10  develop, administer and rate a license examination

         11  for certified elevator inspector and elevator agency

         12  director. We will award that contract within the

         13  next two weeks.

         14                 My remaining comments will highlight

         15  some concerns we have with Intro. 562-A, which we

         16  agree with in principle, but as written is somewhat

         17  problematic.

         18                 The Building Department supports the

         19  license provisions of Intro. 562-A, and believes

         20  that such licensing will improve the quality of

         21  performance safety and elevator construction,

         22  maintenance, repair and inspection. We believe that

         23  a written test designed and administered by a

         24  qualified vendor in the private sector will serve to

         25  be the best source of measurement of knowledge and
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          2  practical application for any prospective licensee.

          3                 A test given for QEI certification is

          4  based on the present ANSI standard and does not

          5  addressed the revised reference standards, rules and

          6  regulations adopted by this Department.

          7                 The relevancy of this recommended

          8  certification is suspect in relation to enforcement

          9  of New York City elevator and escalator standards.

         10  Until such time as this Department contracts with a

         11  vendor to administer a licenced examination, we

         12  believe previously certified professionals should be

         13  deemed grandfathered. When we are in a position to

         14  begin the testing process, grandfathered individuals

         15  must then be tested. In no case, however, do we

         16  believe that background investigations should be

         17  waived for these individuals.

         18                 With respect to the request to have a

         19  master electrician employed by an applicant's

         20  private elevator contractor agency, this appears to

         21  conflict with provisions in the New York City

         22  electrical code. Instead, we would suggest that the

         23  required licensing test be designed to include a

         24  mechanism to assure knowledge in this area.

         25                 There is no doubt that the proposed
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          2  legislation must include conflict of interest

          3  provisions, but as written they are unclear and

          4  appear to conflict with other language in the bill.

          5                 The bill proposes to allow the

          6  issuance of a temporary permit for 90 days, and that

          7  this permit be posted in the elevator itself. We

          8  agree, but would also recommend increasing the

          9  renewal time to 90 days as well, rather than the

         10  proposed 30 days. We are sure industry would support

         11  that change.

         12                 The Department has promulgated a rule

         13  that allows currently certified individuals, most of

         14  whom will be licensed in the future, to

         15  professionally certify application sign-offs, after

         16  the Department issues a temporary use permit. The

         17  proposed legislation restricts that sign off to

         18  Department employees only. As written, that language

         19  is problematic, not only for the Department but to

         20  the industry who will no longer have the authority

         21  to certify that an elevator or escalator should be

         22  signed off.

         23                 This will result in unnecessary

         24  delays to industry and may be an incentive for

         25  unscrupulous individuals to offer gratuities to our
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          2  people for quicker service.

          3                 In the interest of time, let me say

          4  that although we agree that the mandated inspection

          5  should be reduced from five every two years to two

          6  each year, it is problematic for us, as well as

          7  industry, to meet the notification timetable

          8  outlined in the bill, and the elimination of the due

          9  dates for the mandated private inspections is

         10  impractical as well.

         11                 Three additional areas with which the

         12  Department has problems are the following:

         13                 The proposed legislation removes from

         14  the Buildings Department the authority to promulgate

         15  rules and regulations establishing criteria as to

         16  the qualifications of elevator inspection,

         17  maintenance and construction companies.

         18                 We see no benefit to such removal and

         19  believe it sends the wrong message to the industry

         20  and the public.

         21                 In effect, we are saying that the

         22  Department responsible for licensing companies and

         23  people in the elevator industry no longer have the

         24  credibility and authority to set the standards that

         25  these companies and individuals must meet in order
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          2  to do business in this city.

          3                 The second area is the establishment

          4  of an Elevator Safety Advisory Board. Although we

          5  support the creation of such a board, it is

          6  important that the City agency responsible for

          7  enforcing safety and quality standards maintain a

          8  position of authority and influence.

          9                 Other boards currently exist, such as

         10  the Electrical License Board, and the Fire

         11  Suppression Master Plumber License Board.

         12  Consideration should be given to figuring the

         13  proposed board consistent with those already in

         14  existence.

         15                 Lastly, we have real concerns about

         16  some of the information requested to be included in

         17  the accident report, and a level of detail that this

         18  legislation seems to require.

         19                 In effect, we appear to be creating a

         20  litigation file, which is not the appropriate

         21  operational purpose of an accident report. And by

         22  allowing anyone, other than a Buildings Department

         23  employee to place the device back into service after

         24  an accident, but prior to the approval of that

         25  employee, may make it virtually impossible to
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          2  investigate the facts and circumstances surrounding

          3  the accident itself.

          4                 Thank you, and I would be pleased to

          5  answer any questions you may have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I want to thank

          7  you, Commissioner, too, for your comprehensive

          8  response to the report and to Intro. No. 562-A.

          9                 Give me a minute, please, to review

         10  some of the items that you testified to.

         11                 Okay, first what comes to mind is, as

         12  it relates to the inspector's salary, you make a

         13  point that you raised the salary but it is not

         14  really a pay raise, it is just more work for more

         15  money -- I mean, more money for more work, right?

         16  More work for more money.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         18  Certainly productivity is a very important aspect of

         19  this, and we want to make sure that when we do raise

         20  salaries, that there is a benefit to the City and to

         21  the Department in improved productivity.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, but it is

         23  really not a raise, it is just an opportunity to

         24  make more money by doing more work. I don't even

         25  think we give them time and a half, and we don't
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          2  have to give them time after 40 hours; is that

          3  correct?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We do

          5  give them time and a half after 40 hours.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, after 40,

          7  but not between the 35 and the 40.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No. But

          9  a 40-hour work week is the industry standards.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I am not

         11  criticizing you for your effort, I am just saying

         12  that even with the raise you can see you are having

         13  difficulty because we are still away from -- is that

         14  with the 40-hour, $37,000, is that still 23 percent

         15  -- is the $37,017 still 23 percent below industry

         16  standards?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: It is

         18  certainly below industry standards.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But we still

         20  have a problem.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We do.

         22                 As we are staffing up the division,

         23  there are many more opportunities for employees to

         24  raise up in the ranks, to reach the supervisory

         25  level where the salaries are higher and begin to
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          2  come into line with industries, and the $37,000

          3  figure is the minimum entry level position.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In the industry.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: In our

          6  salary structure, so the inspector, there is a range

          7  so that you start off at 37 but then you can rise to

          8  a higher salary into the 40s as an inspector.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There is still a

         10  problem with the 37,000 level as it relates to the

         11  qualifications for a comparable person working in

         12  private industry; am I correct?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Our

         14  salary structure is still lower than the private

         15  sector.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So the answer is

         17  either raise the salaries again or develop more

         18  qualified people, how do we do that? How do we

         19  develop more qualified --

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

         21  think we have to attract younger people to the

         22  Department and show those people that there is a

         23  career path, that there is an opportunity if they

         24  stay with the Department that they will be promoted,

         25  that they will move into the supervisory position,
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          2  and not quite reach parity with the industry, but

          3  the City does offer benefits which in many cases the

          4  private sector doesn't offer, and we are doing our

          5  best to reward our elevator inspectors and are

          6  trying to bring in qualified new inspectors at about

          7  a $42,000 salary range.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is there any

          9  provision for a training program?

         10                 I can recall some years back the

         11  Department of Buildings did for awhile have a

         12  training program where you took in certain, I guess

         13  people who demonstrated potential and they were

         14  given an opportunity to work up to inspector status.

         15  Does anyone remember that besides me? Anyone in the

         16  room?

         17                 Do you?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I

         19  don't.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Corso, do

         21  you ever recall a time when the Department of

         22  Buildings had a training program for inspectors?

         23                 MR. CORSO:  Not for elevators.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Not for

         25  elevators.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: As the

          3  requirements are written in the code, the inspector

          4  must come to us with five years of experience.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is there any way

          6  conceivable that DOB can help people achieve this

          7  five-year experience through incremental --

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          9  we would certainly be pleased to look at a program

         10  in which we could look at individuals perhaps who

         11  are in technical high schools, in the industry.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It makes no

         13  sense for us to be year in and year out, sit here

         14  suffering from a shortage of qualified inspectors

         15  and not make any effort to try to solve that problem

         16  through training more people.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         18  one of the problems that we have had in addition to

         19  attracting people sometimes is keeping the people. I

         20  think we do a good job in training, and then they

         21  leave us and go back into the private sector.

         22                 But certainly I think we should take

         23  a look at what we can do with young people and

         24  people perhaps without the minimum five-years

         25  experience in the trade, and look at what kind of
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          2  program we could put together.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I would

          4  certainly encourage that because we have got a lot

          5  of people in New York City who would welcome an

          6  opportunity to qualify as an elevator inspector and

          7  earn $35,000, $40,000 a year for starters.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I think

          9  it is an excellent suggestion and we will take a

         10  hard look at that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How many

         12  inspectors do you now have on staff? Elevator

         13  inspectors?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We have

         15  approximately 30 -- we have 29 inspectors and nine

         16  supervisors.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Twenty-nine

         18  inspectors?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         20  Twenty-nine inspectors, and nine supervisors.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Which

         23  would be a total of 38, because supervisors also do

         24  inspections.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So that number
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          2  has been reduced from what you had last year this

          3  time; is that correct?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, it

          5  has been increased.

          6                 Last year we had -- we did in fact

          7  have 31 inspectors last year and we lost two

          8  inspectors back to the private sector.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, according

         10  to our information, there was a total of 45 actively

         11  employed during the Fiscal Year '98, so we can check

         12  those numbers, maybe our numbers and your numbers,

         13  while coming from the same source, may be

         14  interpreted differently. And as I stated before, we

         15  will work collegially to achieve the goals that I

         16  stated in my initial statement.

         17                 You spoke about the RFP, that you

         18  were going to award in the very near future, for the

         19  examination of a private inspection agency. The RFP

         20  does not address testing of private elevator

         21  contractors; is that true? Or does it?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: As the

         23  RFP went out it didn't include that. But we can go

         24  back as we make a selection and include that into

         25  the scope of the services that we are contracting
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          2  for. That wouldn't be a problem for us.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          4                 Your rules promulgated in 1998

          5  require potential private elevator inspection

          6  agencies' directors and inspectors to submit a

          7  background check as part of the application process.

          8  How many inspectors and directors has DOB certified

          9  this year? How many background checks have you

         10  performed this year?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I don't

         12  have those numbers with me today, but I would be

         13  happy to provide them.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All right.

         15                 At the May 17th hearing on this

         16  issue, representatives from NAESA testified that

         17  Albany, Buffalo and Rochester, among others,

         18  basically require QEI certification of their

         19  inspectors. You made mention of this in your

         20  statement.

         21                 This serves to ensure, in our

         22  opinion, that elevator inspectors in their

         23  jurisdiction have a standard level of

         24  professionalism and a thorough knowledge of elevator

         25  safety laws. This legislation being discussed
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          2  recommends that all DOB and private elevator

          3  inspectors obtain QEI certification. Would you

          4  expand on why you disagree with this?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I would

          6  be happy to, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 I think we are in agreement that

          8  there should be a rigorous examination, and the QEI

          9  examination is based on a standard which is not the

         10  standard for the installation of elevators in the

         11  City of New York. Although we have adopted a

         12  national standard, and ANSI standard 17.1, we have

         13  made substantial modifications and changes to that

         14  standard.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Did you know

         16  that the QEI organization, or the organization that

         17  gives those accreditations, that they will modify

         18  their requirements to take into consideration your

         19  objections; are you aware of that?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I am

         21  not aware of that, but certainly they could be one

         22  of the entities that could respond to our RFP. And

         23  if they are willing to prepare a test which in fact

         24  incorporates the very specific and unique

         25  requirements of New York City, that would be
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          2  certainly acceptable to us, but we believe that the

          3  Department of Buildings should administer that test,

          4  and it is based on our code and our standards. Not

          5  based on another organization standard or other

          6  jurisdiction standard, and I think that is very

          7  important because we want to assure that the

          8  individuals that we are licensing have the specific

          9  knowledge of the rules and regulations in New York

         10  City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: As well as

         12  whatever else is available to help ensure the safety

         13  of New Yorkers that may be in other parts of the

         14  country, or the world for that matter.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right.

         16                 Well, we do share a national

         17  standard, it is just that we have modified that

         18  standard to incorporate special requirements here

         19  that relate to highrise buildings and fire safety,

         20  and often the Department does not agree with the

         21  latest changes to a standard, and often we are

         22  criticized because a standard that we have in New

         23  York City is depicted as old or out of date. But it

         24  is a good standard, and there is always a trend in

         25  the country to liberalize standards, often those
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          2  standards are established by manufacturers or others

          3  who have a particular interest in changing the

          4  standards.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We are aware of

          6  those possibilities as well as you are.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: So, we

          8  reference a particular standard from 1987 that we

          9  are very comfortable with.

         10                 The QEI certification is based on a

         11  1996 standard, and they are different.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Considering that

         13  the Department has historically failed to mandate a

         14  written test for inspectors, right now it is like an

         15  oral situation; am I correct?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: In the

         17  past it has been an oral examination.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And rather, I

         19  won't use the word superficial, but not the most

         20  challenging -- I mean, since no records are kept of

         21  the questions or the answers, who the heck knows,

         22  and if a person fails today, comes back next week,

         23  he passes -- now, I am not saying this is

         24  necessarily bad, because you still have the

         25  five-year --
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I agree

          3  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It is a rather

          5  loose circumstance under which we operate currently.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: It is

          7  not a good situation, that is why we put out this

          8  RFP, and we believe that by January or February of

          9  next year, we will have the test in place. We are

         10  not satisfied with the oral examination that was

         11  given in the past.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And then for our

         13  files, and to enable us to intelligently participate

         14  in this discussion, could we have a copy of the RFP?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We

         16  would be happy to share that with you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         18                 I will move now to members of the

         19  Committee, and the first one that I will recognize

         20  is Council Member Boyland.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you. We

         22  call Archie the "big cahuna" here, so Commissioner,

         23  just for your own edification.

         24                 I have a few questions. First, on the

         25  last piece that you discussed, which was not being
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          2  able to provide the information for the accidents

          3  reported on the escalators or elevators, based on

          4  legal ramifications I assume that you are saying,

          5  don't you think there would be some supporting

          6  document that if someone was hurt on an elevator or

          7  an escalator from EMS or the Fire Department that

          8  can also substantiate what is going on in terms of

          9  -- I know you don't want to take the blame for

         10  certain incidents that occur in the elevator, is

         11  that indeed the case why it is so difficult for you

         12  to have a report based on that information?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, no.

         14  Let me be clear. We believe that our job is to

         15  document at the site the conditions that prevailed

         16  after the accident. And that a lot of the

         17  information that is being requested has nothing to

         18  do with what happened to that particular device, or

         19  that particular elevator, and that we want to record

         20  the conditions, it really isn't pertinent as to who

         21  the inspector was that inspected the elevator the

         22  last time. We are dealing with the incident, the

         23  accident that happened, what is the condition of the

         24  equipment, what failed, to document those

         25  conditions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Exactly.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: But

          4  often we can't come to a specific conclusion as to

          5  why the accident happened.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: But getting

          7  back to that, in terms of if there was an accident

          8  on an elevator or an escalator, don't you think it

          9  would be important that the information of the

         10  inspector or the date that it was last inspected is

         11  important in terms of identifying the mechanics of

         12  the whole situation?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         14  certainly from the point of view if there were any

         15  violations that were issued.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Exactly.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And we

         18  always look at what is the violation history for the

         19  device.

         20                 But an elevator is a very complex

         21  electro-mechanical piece of equipment, and when we

         22  inspect or anyone else inspects or looks at that

         23  elevator, it is really just a snapshot in time, and

         24  at that point in time everything is okay.

         25                 But elevators require routine and
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          2  regular maintenance. You know, if you go to the

          3  service station, bring your car in and ask for it to

          4  be looked over, you are going on a long trip, checks

          5  the hoses, the belts, the brakes, et cetera, and you

          6  get on the road and you get a flat tire. You know,

          7  some piece, some part fails.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: The

          9  inevitability if you are driving on the road and you

         10  get a flat, we expect brakes may happen, those

         11  things we know may occur, but if a situation occurs

         12  where an inspector could have missed something based

         13  on his qualifications, that is pertinent

         14  information.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: But it

         16  is hard to say whether someone missed something,

         17  because I think the tenor --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Failed to

         19  recognize something that should have been

         20  recognized, and someone got hurt based on that.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: But,

         22  again, it is a snapshot in time. Everything looks

         23  okay. There is wear and tear and although you may

         24  look at something today that looks fine, it tests

         25  fine, a week later, a month later that part, that
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          2  piece could fail.

          3                 I think the important thing is that

          4  when our inspectors go out, they carry a violation

          5  card which is a checklist of over 70 items that they

          6  have to look at and that is what they need to do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Do we have a

          8  copy of that?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We can

         10  certainly give you a copy of that. I think you do

         11  have a copy of our violation notice.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: It might be

         13  interesting to see.

         14                 On the second question, you made a

         15  comment about the three private elevator, three

         16  private elevator companies that you deal with, and

         17  you said that there is a level of corruption in this

         18  business that you are trying to alleviate. Can you

         19  give me some examples of the levels of corruption in

         20  the elevator and escalator business, in terms of,

         21  you know, you made special reference to it.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I think

         23  the issue for us is if we are required to sign off

         24  every elevator installation, that puts our agency,

         25  puts our inspectors in the position that someone may
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          2  look for a favor, to reschedule something sooner, to

          3  sign something off, you know, for a gratuity. By

          4  allowing the private inspection agencies to sign off

          5  the elevator, it gives them the ability to avoid

          6  that situation, that if any inspector, any person

          7  from the Department is going to attempt

          8  bureaucratically to prevent the inspection from

          9  occurring, they would have this option, so we are

         10  not the gatekeeper with regard to the sign-off

         11  inspections.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That is a

         13  very loaded answer that you gave in terms of

         14  identifying the levels of corruption and then

         15  bouncing back to my first question is, if there is

         16  this kind of corruption, the reports may be needed

         17  to help you to identify, to help us understand

         18  better what some of the aspects of identifying the

         19  companies, especially the private industries that

         20  have worked with you and have problems where you

         21  said they are being quote/unquote looked at or

         22  bribed in terms of looking over businesses.

         23                 We will come back to that.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: This is my
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          2  last question, because I have to move on.

          3                 You said that there are nine

          4  supervisors and 29 inspectors, and you are looking

          5  to do an increase in terms of availability and you

          6  are doing some heavy recruitment for inspectors or

          7  supervisors; what number are you trying to achieve

          8  at this particular point? What would be the ultimate

          9  number in terms of inspectors? Fifty, sixty --

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         11  Fifty-seven inspectors is the compliment that we

         12  need to do and address the inspection load that we

         13  have, both for the annual inspections and the

         14  initial installation inspections.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And you are

         16  doing this recruiting now as we speak?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We have

         18  been continuously.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, we

         20  would also like to assist you. In our communities

         21  there are talented people that have the ability to

         22  reach out and do this kind of thing.

         23                 And like the Chair said, we would

         24  like to work with you on that.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We
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          2  welcome all of your help.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, and

          4  phase 2 will get back to part one and two of my

          5  question.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          8  Warden.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you very

         10  much, and good morning, Commissioner.

         11                 A couple of questions in regard to

         12  the personnel aspect. You indicated that our salary

         13  level is approximately 37,000 for entry, but you

         14  didn't tell us what the industry entry level salary

         15  is, do you know that number?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I don't

         17  know it offhand.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Approximate?

         19  Ballpark.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I would

         21  say probably in the upper 40s.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay. So,

         23  isn't it true that you need five years of

         24  experience?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's
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          2  correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: In order to be

          4  able to apply for the job.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Apply

          6  for the job, yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay.

          8                 Where does an individual get those

          9  five years?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: They

         11  garner that experience in the private sector,

         12  working for elevator maintenance companies, elevator

         13  installation companies, on the job, hands on, doing

         14  the work.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Then what

         16  would encourage someone in the private sector that

         17  is making so much more to take a job with the City

         18  at so much less?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: There

         20  is job security, benefits, and we are a great place

         21  to work.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Our

         23  information shows that entry level is approximately

         24  $52,000, and there is a big jump from 52 to 37. I am

         25  trying to help you out now, because I am looking at
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          2  the possibility, you said you want to recruit

          3  younger people, and I don't see really the people

          4  ramming the flood gates to go from a potential 52 to

          5  a 37, unless there are other sweeteners. I mean, you

          6  know, we do have a pension system, we do have some

          7  level of security of course, but if you look at the

          8  balance, it still creates a scenario where people

          9  will run to the gates to apply and that is one of

         10  the problems, but it is a problem that we need to

         11  face because we need the inspectors, correct?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We do.

         13  And we are doing our best to recruit and to offer

         14  the highest possible salary we can to new employees,

         15  and when they demonstrate their ability to move up

         16  within the unit, to encourage that so that as

         17  quickly as possible they can move up through the

         18  salary ranges so that, you know, they can move up to

         19  $42,000 a year as an inspector, and then move into a

         20  supervisory position, which will again move them

         21  into the high forties and the low fifties.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Going back to

         23  something the chairman alluded to, has any thought

         24  been given to establishing, for lack of a better

         25  word, an academy within the Department where you can
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          2  get young people and begin training them so that

          3  they can move into that career? The 37 or the 42

          4  would look good to them, if they are going from

          5  trainee status or apprenticeship status and it could

          6  lead to eventually an elevator inspector status. Has

          7  that ever been thought about, talked about, or

          8  considered?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We will

         10  now. I think it is a very good suggestion, and it

         11  was something that we hadn't looked at before, and

         12  we will take a very serious look at essentially

         13  growing our own inspectors within the Department to

         14  help with the effort to fully staff the Department.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: If you can't

         16  get them from the outside, you better develop

         17  somewhere where we can get them from the inside.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         20  Michael Nelson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair. Good morning, Mr. Visconti. Commissioners.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Good

         24  morning.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Good
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          2  morning.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Do you know

          4  what the approximate costs for private inspectors

          5  during the course of the day, per hour or?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

          7  think that is something which is driven by the

          8  economics of the private sector, and for any given

          9  service there is a wide range. I am really not

         10  familiar with what the private sector charges for

         11  their inspection work, but with our contract that we

         12  have for the elevator inspections, they are

         13  basically on average charging us about $54 per

         14  inspection.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So there is no

         16  set amount of hours, I would imagine, but if it was

         17  approximately six hours per day, it would be about

         18  $378, and of course give or take per hour, it could

         19  be somewhat more or less. The average I think as far

         20  as our own inspectors happen to be approximately, I

         21  think if you take in fringe and everything together

         22  it is about 180 something dollars, I believe, so it

         23  just appears that it might be cheaper for the City

         24  if we had more of our own inspectors overall.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,
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          2  we are under contract, as I stated, and the

          3  inspections are at $54 per inspection, so I think we

          4  are getting very good value in that -- actually we

          5  charge $65 so we are getting good value from the

          6  private sector.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: DOB, our

          8  inspectors, would cost about $65 an hour did you

          9  say?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No,

         11  that is what we charge per inspection. That is our

         12  fee for the annual inspection, $65 per device.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So you are

         14  saying you feel it is more cost effective to go with

         15  outside contractors?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: It is

         17  not costing us any money, so it is cost effective.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: How many,

         19  approximately, private inspectors do we have -- do

         20  we utilize?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I don't

         22  know the numbers, but we have performed, the three

         23  companies have performed over 60,000 inspections for

         24  us.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So it is
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          2  approximately $54 an hour for private, and it was

          3  approximately, whatever it would come out to be in

          4  the course of the day, as was mentioned before, it

          5  could be 400, it could be more or less, but all

          6  inclusive with our own inspectors, approximately --

          7  well, not approximately -- $182.86 to do this, it is

          8  still like -- I don't understand how it stays cost

          9  effective to go outside. I didn't get that.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

         11  am not quite sure I know where you are getting your

         12  numbers from, but when we put out a contract we say

         13  we want you to inspect a certain number of elevators

         14  per week, and give us a price for that work, and

         15  when one, you know, does some mathematical

         16  calculations, you end up with $54 per inspection.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, let me

         18  jump to this. Landmark Elevator Consultants for DOB

         19  emergency contract replied that the inspection, by

         20  the way I am jumping, averaged about 30 minutes.

         21  This seems like a very short period of time overall.

         22  This is all part and parcel of a couple of the

         23  questions going together. Do you feel that that is a

         24  sufficient amount of time?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I
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          2  think when you start talking about averages, you

          3  have to factor into the equation low-rise buildings,

          4  and high-rise buildings. We divided the contracts

          5  into geographical location. So, some of the

          6  companies are dealing with a majority of buildings

          7  with low-rise elevators. Others are dealing with a

          8  geographical area with many high-rise buildings. And

          9  as part of our inspection you ride the top of the

         10  elevator and you are inspecting the inside of a

         11  shaft and the safeties, et cetera. So, if you are

         12  stuck with a geographical area where you have a lot

         13  of high-rise buildings, that inspection is going to

         14  take longer, it is going to take an hour.

         15                 You know, if you are in an area,

         16  let's say in Queens with, you know, a lot of

         17  six-story buildings, it is not going to take that

         18  long, I mean the trip, in essence, is a lot shorter.

         19                 So, I think it is a factor of the

         20  area, the height of the buildings, and what

         21  efficiencies exist. If you are looking at a single

         22  elevator and having to, you know, inspect the pit,

         23  ride the elevator, look in the machine room, as

         24  opposed to having a bank of elevators where you are

         25  going to be able to view a lot of things for several
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          2  devices at the same time.

          3                 When you go into a motor room, you

          4  look at a motor room for six or eight elevators, as

          5  opposed to one. There are a lot of factors that go

          6  into the actual time it takes, you know, on average.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, it was

          8  my understanding this was a six-story building

          9  specific, this 20 minutes.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: You

         11  know, I can't speak to the fact without really

         12  knowing more than that. It is quite possible that,

         13  you know, if you are grouping a series of elevators

         14  that are in that building, it may actually come out

         15  to 20 or 30 minutes, but the reality is that you

         16  were inspecting three or four elevators basically in

         17  the same shaft at the same time, and there is a

         18  certain sort of efficiency that develops.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I was curious

         20  about something you mentioned in your testimony,

         21  that you send inspectors to Tennessee and Cleveland,

         22  how many were sent?

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         24  Initially two to Cleveland and four to Tennessee.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: That was this
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          2  past year?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And were any

          5  sent the previous year?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I am

          7  sorry, we did that in 1998 and 1999, those two.

          8                 And part of what we do, we send the

          9  experienced supervisors there, who come back then

         10  from that training and then impart the knowledge to

         11  the rest of the inspectors, so it is not just two or

         12  four individuals going and that's it, they come back

         13  into the Department and then impart that knowledge

         14  to the rest of the inspectors.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: They have a

         16  seminar when they get back.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's

         18  correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: With groups.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And

         21  share the training with the rest of the inspectors.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. Thank

         23  you, Commissioner.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          3  Michels.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Good morning,

          5  Commissioner.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Good

          7  morning.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Let me get

          9  back to the questions that were asked by my

         10  colleagues.

         11                 What is the value of the benefits

         12  that the employee receives for start-up as elevator

         13  inspectors? It must be some monetary value. I am

         14  trying to see how we can attract people to take less

         15  of a salary. There must be some benefit to them, a

         16  value to those benefits, so you really aren't

         17  getting $37,000, it is really more.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         19  our benefits package I understand is about 33

         20  percent of the base salary, which I think is a good

         21  benefits package.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you have a

         23  dollar amount?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: If you are
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          2  really going to do a selling job to try to get

          3  people coming from an industry to take less of a

          4  salary, you ought to retract them with benefits,

          5  because they are also getting benefits as well.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

          7  Absolutely. Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Where they

          9  are working now they are probably getting benefits,

         10  but it seems to me you say you offer them it's a

         11  great place to work, of course the City is a great

         12  place, we all agree to that, but it seems to me what

         13  we really should be doing is trying to put a package

         14  together to attract not just the people who perhaps

         15  do not have the job security that they can be

         16  offered, because perhaps they are not the top of the

         17  line inspectors, maybe they are not the people with

         18  the most experience, maybe what you are getting are

         19  really not the top inspectors which we need and we

         20  require. So, what you want to do is you want to try

         21  to get really some wonderful people who are getting

         22  the best salaries who would be able to do the job

         23  and get more productivity out of them also.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes. We

         25  agree. We are very aggressive in our recruiting. We
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          2  make it clear what benefits are available and

          3  working for the Department. But, you know, the

          4  construction industry is booming. Thank goodness

          5  that it is doing that. So, we have a problem in one

          6  area, but, again, the City is vital, there is a good

          7  deal of construction, a lot of construction jobs,

          8  and we are being very aggressive in trying to

          9  recruit people.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Because you

         11  have to get the best possible personnel, not the

         12  people who can't make it on the outside and then

         13  come to you. I am not saying that is what is

         14  happening, but it is a possibility, you are not

         15  paying top dollar. So what it really comes down to

         16  is pay them some more money. Why don't we pay them

         17  some more money and get the best we can, and not go

         18  all through these machinations? Try to attract the

         19  experienced, good inspectors, you get more work out

         20  of them, and they end up doing a better job for you

         21  and they will be happier. Just pay them a decent

         22  salary. Why start them at a lower salary and make

         23  them take a decrease in salary from the private

         24  sector?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,
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          2  as I said, we have been trying to offer them the

          3  highest possible starting salary, you know, between

          4  $37,000 and $42,000.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But they are

          6  making more of that on the outside. Why would they

          7  take a cut in salary, even with the benefits? And

          8  besides, you are trying to get the start-up, you

          9  should try to get the experienced guys and give them

         10  a higher salary. When we exempt people in

         11  government, we try to hire somebody to come in as a

         12  Deputy Commissioner or a Commissioner, we are not

         13  giving them a start-up salary, we are trying to get

         14  experienced people. This is so vital to the City, it

         15  is so important, such a dangerous instrumentality,

         16  that we are trying to get the very top people we

         17  possibly can and offer them the best possible

         18  salary, not just start with a start-up salary. You

         19  are not getting start-up people, you are getting

         20  people who have at least five years of experience,

         21  and that is not start-up, those are people who are

         22  around and experienced and should be treated that

         23  way. I think that is extremely important.

         24                 The other thing I wanted to ask you,

         25  when an inspector goes out, he finds a defective
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          2  condition and he puts a violation on it?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, he

          4  does.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How does that

          6  violation get cleared up?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          8  it is an ECB violation, and that violation must be

          9  cured within 30 days.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And how do

         11  you cure it?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: They

         13  cure it by filing for the necessary work that needs

         14  to be done, and get a sign-off for the work.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, they

         16  get a sign-off. Is there a self-certification

         17  process where they send in a document and say I have

         18  done the work?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes,

         20  they self-certify that they have done the work.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And do you

         22  then send out an inspector to check whether or not

         23  the self-certification -- to verify the

         24  self-certification?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We
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          2  audit on a random basis and check those

          3  certifications.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you have

          5  any documents to show how accurate those

          6  self-certifications are?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes,

          8  and we can provide you with that information.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What is the

         10  off-of-the-top-of-your-head opinion, or

         11  recollection? Are the self-certifications, are they

         12  accurate? Or is somebody falsely certifying?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, I

         14  think in general they are accurate.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: In general

         16  they are accurate. What does in general mean? You

         17  know that in HPD you had testimony from the

         18  Commissioner, that 30 percent of the

         19  self-certifications have been found to be false

         20  certifications. I am just wondering what the

         21  percentage of your certification, when you check

         22  them, are found to be false, especially on a

         23  dangerous instrumentality like an elevator? You

         24  can't give me any idea, expect saying generally?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I don't
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          2  have the numbers here, Council Member.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, those

          4  numbers should really be given to us. And don't you

          5  think you should inspect all of them, or some level

          6  of -- if it's a minor violation I can understand

          7  maybe you won't send somebody out, but if it is a

          8  mechanical violation, don't you think you should be

          9  checking each and every one of them, not just rely

         10  on random checking of self-certifications?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         12  we do ten percent of the self-certifications.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Only ten

         14  percent?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That

         16  are hazardous.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Only ten

         18  percent of the hazardous violations, or only ten

         19  percent are hazardous?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We do

         21  ten percent of all certifications, all the hazardous

         22  we do.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: All of the

         24  hazardous, yes, that is what I was hoping you would

         25  say.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So all of the

          4  hazardous -- and how do you distinguish between a

          5  hazardous and a non-hazardous violation?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          7  it is the nature of what is the component which we

          8  see as not functioning properly. And if it is not --

          9  it would represent an imminent danger to the public.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Something

         11  that is dangerous to the life, health and safety of

         12  the people who are riding on it, in your opinion.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         14  we -- you know, when we see those conditions, the

         15  first thing we do, Stanley, is shut down the

         16  elevator.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Correctly so.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Okay?

         19  That is the initial thing that we do. And then that

         20  elevator is not going to be turned on again until we

         21  inspect it and we agree, it is very important for us

         22  to do that --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And I know

         24  this is one of the objections you have in this

         25  legislation, that you don't want those elevators to
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          2  be utilized after an accident.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's

          4  right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Until you

          6  have been actually out there to determine whether

          7  the accident is important --

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's

          9  right. We don't want anyone flipping the switch back

         10  on and that condition not being taken care of.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: After an

         12  accident, what is your time period between the

         13  notification to fix it and determination -- let's

         14  put it this way: How soon after an accident do you

         15  arrive on the scene to check out the elevator?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We

         17  generally arrive within eight hours.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Within eight

         19  hours. And sometimes earlier, I hope?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         21  Sometimes earlier. Obviously if it is during the

         22  normal work week, we are there within the hour.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And then you

         24  order it to be fixed, to be determined if something

         25  is wrong?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

          3  Absolutely. We write violations, we will shut down

          4  the elevator, and --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And you order

          6  the repair.

          7                 Now, then the repair is done and do

          8  you --

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And we

         10  go back out and we inspect it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you allow

         12  them to start the elevator again before you have

         13  checked it out after repairs?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: They

         15  can't return it into service unless we inspect it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You check the

         17  repair.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's

         19  right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now, we went

         21  out, a number of us went out to a company that

         22  manufactured elevators and elevator parts, and one

         23  of the things that was shown to me was that there is

         24  a situation when elevators fall upward, not only

         25  downward, they fall upward, and that there is a
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          2  device that has been around for many, many years,

          3  which prevents elevators from falling upward, which

          4  is not permitted to be installed in New York City.

          5  Are you familiar with that device?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: There

          7  are many pieces of equipment that are out there that

          8  are being promoted as additional --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, this is

         10  to be considered the number one manufacturer in this

         11  country, and most elevator companies purchase all of

         12  their materials, Otis, Stanley, all of them purchase

         13  from them, and they are located in the Bronx, near

         14  Yankee Stadium, and we spent quite a bit of time

         15  seeing demonstrations, some video done, and this is

         16  a device that has been in existence for quite a long

         17  time I understand and it is used in most other

         18  places in the United States, and they say it is

         19  inextricable to them why this cannot be used in New

         20  York so it may prevent the situation which we know

         21  does happen, elevators do fall upward.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We are

         23  always very conservative with new technology, and

         24  sometimes something as promoted as, you know, the

         25  best, one has to look at it very carefully and we
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          2  are happy to look at any safety device. We look for

          3  documentation over the years that the device, that

          4  any device, any improvement is safe, that there is a

          5  national standard --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And that is

          7  exactly what you should be doing, you are absolutely

          8  correct. But this is not a new device, this is a

          9  device that has been around for many years, and they

         10  present it to the agency, and the agency keeps

         11  turning it down, I just wonder, you must be familiar

         12  with this device? I don't have the name of it, but

         13  it is a common device used in other places, and we

         14  don't have anything installed in our elevators that

         15  prevents elevators from falling upward, do we?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, we

         17  don't have a device that prevents an elevator from

         18  falling upward.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right. And

         20  they have something, and has it been evaluated? It

         21  has been there for many years. They seem to feel, I

         22  asked them why and the answer that was given to me

         23  --

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: It is

         25  under review, all right?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: His answer to

          3  me was that it has been under review, but that there

          4  is such a fear of anything that is different from

          5  what we already have to do. And sometimes new

          6  devices -- which it isn't really that new, I

          7  understand it has been around for ten, 12 years --

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: The

          9  industry has not come to us and said as a whole we

         10  think this is something that, you know, you must do,

         11  and we are looking for the industry as a whole to

         12  come back to us.

         13                 We are looking at this, it is not

         14  that we are not looking at it. But we want to be

         15  sure that if we allow something to be installed

         16  voluntarily or we are going to mandate it, that it,

         17  in fact, works.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Stanley.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do your

         20  people tell you --

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And it

         22  doesn't present a hazard in and of itself.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I agree with

         24  you.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And the
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          2  instances of an elevator going up are very unique.

          3  There is only one occurrence that I know of that

          4  happened at the Empire State Building, one instance.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member.

          6  Council Member.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am

          8  finishing up.

          9                 In other words, you only know of one

         10  instance where this happened. Has anybody made any

         11  inquiry to find out if there are other incidences,

         12  or that just happened to come to your attention?

         13                 Has a study been made to determine

         14  how many elevators fall upward?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We are

         16  always looking at our accident reports, and I am not

         17  aware of another instance of this occurring.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Stanley, let's

         20  not get too hung up on this concept today. We will

         21  go back in greater detail.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I want to get

         23  the mindset of the agency with respect to new

         24  devices. Sometimes new things are good, sometimes

         25  they are bad.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We

          3  understand.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But we

          5  shouldn't be so stuck in the procedures that we have

          6  that we don't evaluate.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, we

          8  are. I just want to let you know, we have a pilot

          9  program for another safety device, which is called

         10  the Life Jacket for hydraulic elevators.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner, I

         12  am sure that you will give every opportunity to

         13  anyone with some innovative concept that increases

         14  the opportunity for safety and all of the other good

         15  things that come from people with vision.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Commissioner,

         18  just getting back to the hiring of inspectors and

         19  the salaries that they work at, DOB has a huge

         20  amount of surplus above operating expense, and each

         21  year when I raise that, I am told that DOB's revenue

         22  is spiked by the fact of the costs, but the fact

         23  that you don't factor in other costs, like Corp

         24  Counsel and fringes and all of that kind of stuff.

         25                 I believe, Commissioner, the gap
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          2  between what your revenue is and what you spend at

          3  the Department is adequate to enable you to pay --

          4  now, are there any other restraints on your ability

          5  to increase the salaries of inspectors? Do you have

          6  any contractual restrictions with the Inspectors

          7  Union or comparable with Health Department

          8  inspectors or HPD inspectors, or is there any

          9  limitations on your ability, legal limitations on

         10  your ability to pay salaries to attract and retain

         11  elevator inspectors?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         13  my understanding is with the labor contracts that we

         14  have and the titles for inspectors, that we have to

         15  fall within the range of those.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So there are

         17  some limitations as to what you can pay?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Right.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: It

         22  becomes a Citywide issue.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now, the union

         24  demonstrated some cooperation in terms of going from

         25  the 35 to the 40, so has the union, in your opinion,
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          2  gone to the limits in allowing you to make the

          3  special consideration in terms of pay to elevator

          4  inspectors?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

          6  think they have been helpful to the Department.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, my

          8  question was, do you think the unions, the

          9  cooperation of the unions has been as much as it

         10  could be, or could they do more in permitting you to

         11  achieve competitive salaries with private industry

         12  inspectors?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I think

         14  they have been cooperative and our productivity is

         15  up.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, that is an

         17  area that we want to talk about some more.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Just one or two

         20  more questions, and I will be done.

         21                 Currently, employees of private

         22  elevator inspectors and agencies who are performing

         23  private inspections may inspect an elevator that has

         24  been installed, maintained or repaired by the

         25  company that employs them.
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          2                 In your opinion, does this create a

          3  conflict or a potential conflict of interest where

          4  the same person who installs and maintains then can

          5  inspect and approve?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, we

          7  would agree that that is a conflict.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And steps are

          9  being taken to remove that conflict?

         10                 In our legislation we make special

         11  reference to prohibiting that kind of conflict, the

         12  potential conflict.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, we

         14  would agree with that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, very good.

         16                 Council Member Provenzano, do you

         17  have a question?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You may inquire.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I hate to

         21  get hung up on one point, but I would still like to

         22  get back to the whole salary and pay issue and I

         23  don't think it has been totally cleared up. There is

         24  a minimum maximum, and I didn't understand

         25  correctly. Did you say that this is directly related
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          2  to union contracts, or is it set by the personnel?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          4  my understanding, it is by --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Salary

          6  range, minimum maximum.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: By the

          8  union and what is negotiated as the salary ranges

          9  for the particular inspector titles.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: When does

         11  that contract expire?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: This

         13  December.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: This

         15  December, okay.

         16                 Do you have any intention of

         17  renegotiating?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We

         19  don't do that type of negotiation, that is the

         20  Office of Labor Relations.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO; the Office

         22  of Labor Relations.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That

         24  works on behalf of the agencies negotiating these

         25  contracts.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, if you

          3  wanted to provide an increase in your budget, how

          4  would you go about doing that? Would you make a

          5  recommendation?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I don't

          7  understand the question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You don't

          9  understand the question?

         10                 If the range for elevator inspector

         11  is 30,530 to 38,781, if you were concerned about

         12  raising that range, you said obviously it appears to

         13  come under a contract with the union. They would

         14  then have to go to the Office of Labor Relations to

         15  renegotiate. Don't you have any input into saying,

         16  as we have been saying here, that range is quite

         17  low, let's now consider, since we have the

         18  opportunity, to raise that range?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, we

         20  do, and we have been in our discussions with the

         21  Office of Labor Relations that we do need to raise

         22  the elevator inspector salaries.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now we

         24  just concluded budget negotiations, did you

         25  anticipate that during that time and ask for an
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          2  increase?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I am

          4  told there was no collective bargaining in this

          5  year's budget.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Which

          7  means what?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: When the

          9  union negotiates the contract with the City they

         10  come to closure on a number, a range of salary

         11  levels. Those dollars are then added into our budget

         12  as a collective bargaining adjustment. That didn't

         13  occur this year because there was no collective

         14  bargaining agreement negotiation, it will occur the

         15  following year.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But you

         17  knew that there would be one in December, so should

         18  you not have --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: We are in

         20  discussions. None of this is done in a vacuum. We

         21  discuss it with OLR, we discuss it with OMB, we

         22  discuss it with the unions, we discuss it with all

         23  of the agencies involved in the issue, and then

         24  ultimately we come to closure. So, it is not done

         25  just -- our needs are expressed to everybody that is
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          2  involved in the process.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, have

          4  these discussions started? Are you anticipating that

          5  they will start? Are you in discussion now?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: I have not

          7  been in discussions now. I believe probably in

          8  September, so in the fall.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Are you

         10  considering -- I mean, have you thought about what

         11  you think the range should be?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: We have

         13  discussed this issue with everybody involved for

         14  quite some time, and there has been additional

         15  monies put in our budget over the last several years

         16  to address this issue.

         17                 What we are trying to do now, given

         18  the parameters that we have to operate under, we are

         19  trying to hire people above the minimum.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And how

         21  can you work that out? How does that happen?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: We offer a

         23  salary above the lowest entry level salary. We

         24  discuss this with all of the people involved --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So,
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          2  instead of them starting at 30,000, you may invite

          3  them to start at 35,000 or 36,000, based on their

          4  experience?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Yes. Those

          6  aren't the numbers, but that is the concept. Yes.

          7  And we have authority to do that, and have been

          8  doing that, am trying to do that. Regardless of all

          9  of this, everybody acknowledges that the salary for

         10  our inspectors, not only elevator, construction and

         11  everybody, is often lower than what people can get

         12  on the outside, given the construction boom that the

         13  City has been experiencing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But I

         15  think this is something that hasn't happened just

         16  now, it has been something that -- I mean, the facts

         17  have remained the same over several years, so I

         18  think we are a little --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: I don't

         20  disagree with that, but the situation is even more

         21  difficult now, given what is going on outside in the

         22  construction world, it is booming. People are making

         23  lots of money. And when that happens, people leave

         24  government. When it slows down, people will come

         25  back to government. That is not an answer, it is
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          2  just the facts.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I don't

          4  think we can wait.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Yes, I don't

          6  think we disagree.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: The DOB

          8  inspectors, you had 45 inspectors in June of '98,

          9  and now I believe you have something like 34 or 35

         10  elevator inspectors?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, we

         12  have 37 elevator inspectors as we speak.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: As of now.

         14  Which is less than you had in June of '98. You have

         15  37 elevator inspectors.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes. We

         17  have a few less.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And you

         19  have renewed contracts with the private elevator

         20  inspector agencies?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right.

         22  We are putting out a new RFP for continued elevator

         23  inspections. The contracts that we have now are

         24  ending, and they are ending -- each one has a

         25  different ending date, so we now have to go out with
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          2  a new RFP for those same services to carry us out

          3  until we have a full compliment of inspectors in the

          4  Elevator Division.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well, I am

          6  not a finance wiz, this is not my area of expertise,

          7  but when I look at the figures and see what you are

          8  paying private contractors as opposed to what you

          9  could pay even with a substantial increase to your

         10  own people, it just doesn't make any sense to me why

         11  this is happening.

         12                 From the stats I have here, the

         13  private contract inspector, we are looking at $324

         14  for six inspections, a DOB elevator inspector

         15  looking at a $37,000 salary, plus his fringe which

         16  gives us 45,000, is still only costing you $182.86 a

         17  day. There is something wrong with this.

         18                 I mean, what is the rationale? Even

         19  if you raise their salaries, it would still make

         20  more sense to use your own people than to farm this

         21  out.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: The

         23  contracts that we have with the private elevator

         24  inspection companies require us to pay them $54 for

         25  each inspection they make. In return we get $65 from
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          2  the owner for that service. We are making money, we

          3  make about $350,000 a year using the private

          4  elevator inspector companies.

          5                 The $54 is not salary to the

          6  employees of those companies. We don't know what

          7  they pay the actual inspector, so what you are

          8  comparing is a fee for a service not knowing how

          9  much of that money goes back to the inspector. And I

         10  suspect if you can get that number from them, if

         11  they will give it to you, you will find that they

         12  are probably paying a comparable or less to that

         13  inspector than we pay to the City people. We don't

         14  have that number here.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, but

         16  I don't see that as being an important part of this

         17  issue. You still get the $65 even if your guys do

         18  it.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: It's the

         20  critical part of the issue.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Why?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: We don't

         23  know the salary structure that is in place with the

         24  three elevator companies. We just don't know that.

         25  We know what we pay, we know what we receive, we
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          2  know that financially it makes sense because we are

          3  making money, but we don't know what any of their

          4  inspectors walk away with at the end of the day.

          5                 If we could find that number then we

          6  could have a better discussion about it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But we

          8  should only be concerned with the cost to this City.

          9  I mean, once you pay them whatever, then it is their

         10  option to do what they want to with the money you

         11  paid them.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You get

         14  $65 an inspection, whether they do it or whether our

         15  guys do it.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: That's

         17  correct. But you can't conclude, just because we are

         18  paying an outside vendor that it is a losing

         19  proposition to government. It is not. We are still

         20  making money. We are bringing in $350,000 a year,

         21  using outside people. Recollect that, this is an

         22  interim measure. We had a problem three years ago

         23  where we literally lost our work force and

         24  government has an obligation, a legal obligation, a

         25  moral obligation to inspect these elevators, the
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          2  only option we had was to go to the outside on what

          3  is called an emergency contract. Unfortunately the

          4  timing of this was such that the construction

          5  industry is booming, the people that we thought we

          6  could get to reach our full compliment of what is

          7  now 57 we never got. So we were in a situation

          8  where, (a) either we can't do these, or we pay

          9  someone to do them for us. And as long as we are

         10  paying someone to do them for us, and we are still

         11  making money as a result, I don't think that is that

         12  bad.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, I

         14  really think that your priority has to be to

         15  aggressively recruit new members.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And

         18  whether you have to come to us or whoever you have

         19  to go to, but I think that has to be the number one

         20  priority.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

         22  Commissioner, just my final observation is that as I

         23  understand inspection services, the cost of an

         24  inspection is to cover -- the fee for the inspection

         25  is to cover the cost of what is required to do the
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          2  inspection. That is my understanding, whether it is

          3  the Health Department, or whether it is HPD or

          4  whatever it is, it is not supposed to be a

          5  money-making proposition. We are not supposed to

          6  make money on inspections. That is why again I am

          7  saying HPD has got plenty of bucks.

          8                 Now, let's make money, I am not

          9  opposed to reducing fees, that will help the City as

         10  well. Let's reduce fees. Maybe this Committee needs

         11  to take a review of what the fee structure is in

         12  DOB, because I keep talking about, I know we make

         13  the fees, right? When we compete elevators, we are

         14  going to reduce some of these fees as well.

         15                 I want to thank you, Commissioner,

         16  for your testimony. And as I have stated before,

         17  this forum or format, that they have not been an

         18  adversarial process, we want to work together

         19  because I know your goals are the same as ours in

         20  achieving and reassuring New Yorkers that they can

         21  use our elevators in confidence, that they are not

         22  exposed to any harm or danger, so thank you.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will now have
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          2  the New York City Housing Authority, who I am told

          3  is in the house, they are here to make a statement

          4  as well.

          5                 And then after the New York City

          6  Housing Authority we have Mr. Corso, of the Allied

          7  Building Inspectors. Then Mr. Thomas Donovan,

          8  Michael Bonardi, Scott Schindler, Nicholas

          9  Montesano. We will hear from all of these gentlemen,

         10  in that order.

         11                 Sir, if you will identify yourself.

         12                 MR. ASHTON: Chairman Spigner, members

         13  of the Committee, good morning.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Good morning.

         15                 MR. ASHTON: My name is John Ashton. I

         16  am the Administrator of the Elevator Division of the

         17  New York City Housing Authority.

         18                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         19  testify concerning the City Council's proposed

         20  legislation number 562-A. If adopted, and if NYCHA

         21  is not granted status as a private elevator

         22  contractor agency and a private elevator inspection

         23  agency, this amendment to the Building Code, would

         24  transfer the inspection, maintenance, and repair of

         25  the elevators of the New York City Housing Authority
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          2  from the Authority to private contractors. Although

          3  we understand the purpose of the proposed

          4  legislation, specifically the Conflict of Interest

          5  Provision, NYCHA believes that this would be

          6  extremely detrimental and a major step backward for

          7  our developments and the welfare of our residents.

          8                 Let me give you a broad overview of

          9  our Elevator Division. I hope that this overview may

         10  stem some misconceptions that may have arisen based

         11  on the City Council reports entitled Uneasy Ride.

         12                 There are 3,315 elevators in our

         13  developments. They are inspected, maintained and

         14  repaired by approximately 450 NYCHA employees. In

         15  1998, we spent $35 million in salaries, maintenance

         16  and materials. We have more than $100 million

         17  allocated for ongoing rehabilitation, and $206

         18  million earmarked for capital improvements on our

         19  elevators for 1999 through 2003.

         20                 As well intentioned as the

         21  legislation may be, it is based on a flawed report.

         22  We don't say that NYCHA's elevator systems are in

         23  perfect shape, but even where they can be improved,

         24  this legislation may make the situation worse, not

         25  better, for the following reasons:

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 First, is the capacity of the private

          3  sector to meet our needs. And second, is the ability

          4  of the private sector to meet the standards of

          5  integrity set by our monitoring requirements.

          6                 Let's take them one by one. NYCHA

          7  originally began inspecting its own elevators

          8  because skilled personnel simply could not be found

          9  outside the Authority in numbers adequate to our

         10  needs.

         11                 In other words, by shear volume

         12  NYCHA's elevator requirements are greater than the

         13  capacity of the private sector in terms of

         14  personnel, and the means of delivering service to

         15  NYCHA's vast area. We understand our housing better

         16  than any outside provider could. We are committed

         17  exclusively to our residents' safety and quality of

         18  life. We maintain a 24-hour seven-day-a-week rapid

         19  response system. The private elevator industry

         20  cannot meet that challenge.

         21                 This is perhaps the most critical

         22  reason for us to take care of our own elevators.

         23                 Our second very serious problem with

         24  the privatization of our elevator service is

         25  integrity. Any commercial contractor would have to
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          2  meet the current rigid certification procedures set

          3  by our inspector general.

          4                 And we do not believe that the

          5  performance of such personnel could be adequately

          6  monitored, and quite frankly, we have serious doubts

          7  that the industry could absorb the changes and the

          8  burdens that this legislation seeks to impose. These

          9  are our most alarming concerns about the

         10  legislation, but beyond those, relinquishing NYCHA's

         11  enormous elevator demands to the private sector now

         12  would involve major increases in cost.

         13                 Now, NYCHA must take care of its own

         14  elevators. We have done a better job than any

         15  private outside contractor. It is not perfect, there

         16  is room for improvement, and we are making those

         17  improvements. But when you give serious

         18  consideration to the special character of our

         19  developments, you will conclude that NYCHA is the

         20  best available, most responsible alternative. We

         21  respectfully but urgently request that this

         22  legislation not attempt to fix what is not broken,

         23  but rely on NYCHA to fix what is.

         24                 Thank you. I would be happy to

         25  address any questions you may have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I want to

          3  thank you, Mr. Ashton, for your forthright testimony

          4  expressing the views of your agency.

          5                 MR. ASHTON: You are welcome.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How do you

          7  account for the fact that with just five percent of

          8  the City elevators NYCHA accounts for 27 percent of

          9  all accidents?

         10                 MR. ASHTON: Well, in dealing with

         11  percentages, we can simply say that NYCHA does

         12  everything it possibly can to comply with the

         13  Department of Buildings requirements in reporting

         14  accidents.

         15                 So, in dealing with the 27 percent of

         16  all accidents in the City, it must be stressed that

         17  many of these alleged or reported accidents are

         18  minor in nature. Many are the result of fingers

         19  being caught in the closing door where attempts were

         20  made to reopen the door. Incidents have occurred

         21  where people have slipped in stair halls because

         22  there is an alleged elevator out of service.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And that is

         24  reported as an elevator accident, if someone slips

         25  in a stair hall?
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          2                 MR. ASHTON: At times it is.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          4                 MR. ASHTON: So, it must be impressed

          5  upon --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What percentage

          7  of non-elevator accidents do you think is

          8  incorporated into your elevator statistics?

          9                 MR. ASHTON: I don't have that figure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is it high?

         11                 MR. ASHTON: I suspect it is minimum.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Minimum, okay.

         13                 MR. ASHTON: But the perception that

         14  is being laid out is that we have an enormous amount

         15  of accidents compared to the elevator stock in the

         16  City. It is simply the case that we do report

         17  basically all accidents that we are aware of, so we

         18  cannot address the reporting practices of the

         19  private sector or other owners.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: As it relates to

         21  your inspectors, do you qualify your inspectors, are

         22  they a part of the Allied Inspectors Union?

         23                 MR. ASHTON: No, they are not.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are they listed

         25  as NYCHA employees whose category and responsibility
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          2  it is to repair and maintain elevators?

          3                 MR. ASHTON: We do have inspectors

          4  that are certified by the Department of Buildings.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          6                 MR. ASHTON: They are NYCHA employees.

          7  They are in the title of elevator mechanics.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, you don't

          9  have elevator inspectors and such, because you don't

         10  need inspectors, when your elevators -- I mean, you

         11  would do your own inspection, you are responsible

         12  for -- what is your schedule of inspections?

         13                 MR. ASHTON: Since 1992, the Authority

         14  was given status as a self-inspection agency by the

         15  Department of Buildings, so NYCHA had created an

         16  inspection unit, which encompasses ten elevator

         17  mechanics that were certified by the Department of

         18  Buildings, and we are obligated to perform the

         19  periodic inspections, the two and five-year safety

         20  tests.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How many

         22  elevators in NYCHA buildings?

         23                 MR. ASHTON: 3,315.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And do you have

         25  any difficulty in hiring -- so, you have a
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          2  ten-person inspection force, do you have any

          3  difficulty in hiring so-called inspectors in that

          4  category and maintenance and repair people?

          5                 MR. ASHTON: No, we do not. Our

          6  inspectors come from the pool of mechanics that are

          7  employed by NYCHA.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And your salary

          9  scales are comparable to what? Private industry or

         10  less?

         11                 MR. ASHTON: They are comparable to

         12  private industry. Our mechanics are covered under

         13  the 220 Labor Law so they are paid at the rate of

         14  the prevailing unions on the outside, when contracts

         15  can be negotiated.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And your ten

         17  inspectors?

         18                 MR. ASHTON: They are paid at that

         19  same level, as elevator mechanics.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: They are paid as

         21  elevator mechanics?

         22                 MR. ASHTON: That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is that a higher

         24  salary than a Department of Buildings inspector

         25  receives?
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          2                 MR. ASHTON: Yes, it is.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How much more?

          4                 MR. ASHTON: Our inspectors currently

          5  make approximately $50,000 a year.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But you qualify

          7  them, because DOB right now says they want five

          8  years experience in the industry. Your inspectors

          9  get five years of experience working on NYCHA's

         10  3,000 elevators, right?

         11                 MR. ASHTON: They could. But before

         12  they are certified by the Department of Buildings,

         13  they must have already received that five years of

         14  experience, so we in fact don't certify them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But they can get

         16  that five years of experience working for you.

         17                 MR. ASHTON: Yes, they can.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Someone as a

         19  mechanic, or some reasonably intelligent person with

         20  aptitude can come to you and be trained, I am

         21  certain that you train your mechanics, right?

         22                 MR. ASHTON: We do.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And you could

         24  raise them up to the inspection level, so maybe we

         25  will use NYCHA as a source of training for these
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          2  aspiring inspectors for DOB.

          3                 MR. ASHTON: We would certainly --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Discuss it,

          5  right?

          6                 MR. ASHTON: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All right.

          8                 MR. ASHTON: But I would just like to

          9  clarify, the mechanics, whether they are doing

         10  inspection work or doing maintenance and repair are

         11  paid at the same rate of pay. We do not bring people

         12  up to a level just because they work in an

         13  inspection unit.

         14                 They are paid at the same rate of pay

         15  had they been still fixing elevators.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But to be

         17  certified by DOB, they have acquired that background

         18  with NYCHA?

         19                 MR. ASHTON: They may have. Or they

         20  may have acquired it in the private sector --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But they could

         22  have acquired it with you?

         23                 MR. ASHTON: Yes, they could have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         25                 All right, let me just see now.
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          2                 If you spoke about the reporting of

          3  accidents, do you report all accidents to DOB? What

          4  is an accident -- what does it mean? If you get your

          5  finger caught or if it is above the ankle or below

          6  the knee, or what do you feel the need is to report

          7  to DOB?

          8                 MR. ASHTON: Well, we report to DOB

          9  accidents that result in injury.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What extent of

         11  injury?

         12                 MR. ASHTON: Minor injury, as long as

         13  we are aware if someone calls the Elevator Division

         14  or NYCHA in some capacity and says --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I understand we

         16  have some rule about $100 in damage for --

         17                 MR. ASHTON: For any time the injury

         18  requires the physician.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is that your

         20  standard?

         21                 MR. ASHTON: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So then these

         23  are not so minor. $100 can be a very minor number.

         24                 MR. ASHTON: Yes, it could.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Certainly when
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          2  you require a physician that is not minor.

          3                 MR. ASHTON: That's correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So that is the

          5  standard that you are reporting to DOB?

          6                 MR. ASHTON: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, Mr.

          8  Ashton, you associate, you never introduced him.

          9                 MR. ASHTON: This is Bo Cerny, he is

         10  the Deputy Administrator for the Elevator Division.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         12  gentlemen.

         13                 Do you have anything to add, Mr.

         14  Cerny?

         15                 MR. CERNY: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         17  gentlemen. We will be back to you.

         18                 MR. ASHTON: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Folks, hold on.

         20  Council Member Provenzano has a question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I am not

         22  going to sit on the end anymore, you can't see me.

         23                 I am very concerned about the

         24  statement you made here, implying that if this

         25  proposed legislation becomes law, NYCHA will
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          2  effectively be privatized. Explain that to me. Why?

          3                 MR. ASHTON: We are simply concerned

          4  that as a public housing organization, that we be

          5  given the opportunity to be considered a private

          6  elevator inspection agency, or a private elevator

          7  contractor agency.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Why?

          9                 MR. ASHTON: Because we presently

         10  maintain and repair all of our elevators.

         11                 We believe that if we are taken out

         12  of that business, that the private industry simply

         13  could not endure the significant workload.

         14                 We also feel that we do in fact

         15  provide a better service. The Authority during

         16  normal business hours staffs all of its developments

         17  with an elevator team. We provide 24-hour a day

         18  service, with the workforce that we have, there are

         19  emergencies. We could mobilize that work force and

         20  respond to any emergencies or catastrophes at a

         21  moment's notice. I don't believe that the private

         22  sector would be able to provide that type of service

         23  to us.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Statistics

         25  really don't qualify that. You only have -- you have
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          2  five percent of the elevators in the City, yet 27

          3  percent of the accidents occur in NYCHA housing. I

          4  have several housing developments in my area,

          5  talking -- if you are only talking about accidents,

          6  that's serious enough. Let's just move on to things

          7  that we don't consider accidents.

          8                 Most of your developments, you have

          9  most of our seniors in your developments, you have

         10  children, young working adults. It has been my

         11  experience, the complaints that I get in my office

         12  are housing developments where elevators are out

         13  anywhere from four to six to seven months. You have

         14  developments that are 11 floors, and I get calls

         15  from seniors, I get calls from wheelchair-bound

         16  people constantly, it is not an occasional

         17  happening: I am wheelchair-bound, I live on the 11th

         18  floor, the elevator has been out for six weeks, they

         19  are telling me it is going to take another month or

         20  two, and it turns into a month after month after

         21  month process. How do I get out of here? I have to

         22  go to rehab, I have to go to my doctor.

         23                 So, moving away from the accident

         24  part of it, which is very important, I am not taking

         25  away from that, there is a bigger problem.
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          2                 MR. ASHTON: May I address that?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Please do.

          4                 MR. ASHTON: If there is a particular

          5  elevator that is out for that period of time, it is

          6  generally for specific reasons. One, it may be under

          7  rehabilitation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But this

          9  is not an occasional happening. It happens all the

         10  time.

         11                 If I called my office, I could

         12  probably give you three housing developments, and

         13  they call me from other areas, not even my area,

         14  where they are in the process of doing elevator

         15  service.

         16                 I mean, we had a 277 percent increase

         17  in NYCHA elevators that stalled and trapped

         18  passengers, and you know this is just touching

         19  another issue between '92 and '96. I just don't have

         20  the confidence in your elevator inspectors or repair

         21  people that you do.

         22                 MR. ASHTON: May I respond?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes.

         24                 MR. ASHTON: First and foremost, your

         25  concerns concern me deeply because under those
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          2  circumstances, should there be an elevator out for

          3  that period of time, that we are not aware of and

          4  that we don't have a reasonable explanation. So, I

          5  would certainly encourage you to contact us and we

          6  will address that.

          7                 Regarding the issue of the 277

          8  percent increase in the number of passengers stalled

          9  in elevators from '92 to '96, I know back in July I

         10  believe of 1997, Mr. Steve Zimbowitz had responded

         11  to those numbers because we disputed them. And what

         12  we have done to actually analyze those reports, is

         13  that we have found that the numbers listed in the

         14  report were excessively high and we do not agree

         15  with that. We took a close look at that report and

         16  we actually counted the number of times where

         17  passengers were actually removed from stalled

         18  elevators, okay?

         19                 The point here is that when residents

         20  or visitors find an elevator out of service, they

         21  know that we give the utmost priority to calls where

         22  passengers are trapped, so we have found that most

         23  of those calls are unfounded, but it is their way to

         24  get us to respond immediately, and that is why we

         25  have so many reported incidents.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And when

          3  you refuted that, did we get the records that you

          4  adjusted?

          5                 MR. ASHTON: I believe you already had

          6  the records, but I would have to get back to you on

          7  that as far as what you received in response.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I won't

          9  belabor this because I know you want to get this

         10  hearing over, you say you have ten mechanics, are

         11  they also mechanic elevator inspectors? Or do they

         12  only inspect elevators, or do they do something else

         13  when they are not inspecting elevators?

         14                 MR. ASHTON: No. Their sole role is to

         15  perform the mandated inspections as proscribed by

         16  the Department of Buildings.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Before you

         18  leave I would like your name and telephone number,

         19  because the next call I get I am calling you.

         20                 MR. ASHTON: I have no problem with

         21  that. I encourage that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         23  Council Member.

         24                 Thank you, too, Mr. Ashton, for your

         25  testimony. It has enlightened us on some points and
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          2  given us some additional information on areas we

          3  need to look into, so thank you.

          4                 MR. ASHTON: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, Mr. Corso.

          6  Joseph Corso, President of Allied Building

          7  Inspectors, Local 211.

          8                 Mr. Corso, if you will identify

          9  yourself, we will be pleased to hear your testimony

         10  on today's topic.

         11                 MR. CORSO: My name is Joseph Corso, I

         12  am the President of the Allied Building Inspectors,

         13  Local 211, of the International Union of Operating

         14  Engineers, and I represent the New York City

         15  elevator inspectors.

         16                 Mr. Chairman, members of the Council,

         17  we have reviewed the Council's report on elevator

         18  safety and the accompanying legislation. The report

         19  touches on many issues that we have been trying to

         20  resolve for some time now, such as staffing,

         21  salaries, equipment, training and productivity

         22  quotas, issues that affect work quality and service

         23  delivery.

         24                 We believe the report honestly

         25  details each of these issues and that the
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          2  recommendation for improvements outlined at the end

          3  of the report are well thought out, necessary and

          4  provide a doable solution.

          5                 We do not have a problem with the

          6  licensing requirement in the accompanying

          7  legislation. Also, we would prefer a comprehensive

          8  New York City exam in lieu of the QEI requirement,

          9  one that would not be restricted to the national

         10  code, but would also include New York City

         11  regulation.

         12                 We strong oppose the proposed

         13  reduction in the number of periodic inspections

         14  without first ensuring the recommendations in the

         15  report are implemented as intended. To do so,

         16  without change, would be a disaster and we believe

         17  lives would be at risk.

         18                 I emphasize that the recommendations

         19  be implemented as intended. Too often agencies make

         20  superficial changes or redefine current practices so

         21  they can claim they address the particular problem,

         22  at times, not by choice, but limitations placed by

         23  the Administration. This cannot be allowed to happen

         24  when we are dealing with elevator safety.

         25                 Our fear is that if the legislation
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          2  to reduce the number of inspections passes, and the

          3  Department of Buildings does not implement the

          4  recommendations, the report and the efforts of this

          5  Committee will have done more harm than good.

          6                 The Administration must be on board

          7  before we proceed. The authority of the Building

          8  Commissioner is limited.

          9                 For example, as documented in the

         10  report, former Commissioner Joel Miele advocated

         11  raising inspector salaries in 1996, stating elevator

         12  inspector salaries must be competitive with the

         13  private sector. He was unable to get it done.

         14                 In 1998, Building Commissioner Gaston

         15  Silva said elevator inspector salaries are

         16  insufficient. He was unable to effect the change. In

         17  fact, we were in contract negotiations at that time

         18  and although the Commissioner cited low salaries as

         19  a factor hindering DOB's two-year effort to restaff

         20  the Elevator Division, double zeros were the result

         21  at the table.

         22                 The City Council initiated this

         23  study, the resulting report identifies what is

         24  broken and what is needed to be fixed. Millions of

         25  New Yorkers now are depending on the Council to get

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  the job done and get it done right, some of them

          3  with their lives.

          4                 Do you have any questions, Mr.

          5  Chairman?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes, Mr. Corso.

          7                 In a statement issued on the date of

          8  the release of the report Uneasy Ride, DOB said that

          9  it is in the process of hiring additional elevator

         10  inspectors. How many inspectors are currently

         11  employed at DOB? How many inspectors were employed

         12  last year?

         13                 MR. CORSO: The numbers that were

         14  quoted earlier --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, and what

         16  is the greatest barrier to hiring and retaining, in

         17  your opinion, elevator inspectors? And you did

         18  comment somewhat earlier on that.

         19                 MR. CORSO: Okay, the current number

         20  off the top of my head, we have 34 elevator

         21  inspectors.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And last year?

         23                 MR. CORSO: We were up near 40. We are

         24  losing them as fast as we can get them. The salary

         25  is just not competitive enough.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, let's talk

          3  about salaries.

          4                 MR. CORSO: Fine.

          5                 We went into contract negotiations,

          6  there is a range between the base salary of an

          7  inspector and the maximum. There is no mechanism to

          8  get to that maximum range. Whatever salary an

          9  individual comes into the job with, that is the

         10  salary he will remain at until contract negotiations

         11  bring it up. And as I said, the last contract, the

         12  first two years were double zeros.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What are you

         14  proposing to management?

         15                 Are you limited by what HPD

         16  inspectors receive, or what inspectors in other

         17  areas of government enforcement, City enforcement?

         18                 MR. CORSO: In the past we have not

         19  broken parity. But the executive board of our local

         20  has made a decision, almost two years ago, that in

         21  the effort to recruit elevator inspectors, we were

         22  willing to break parity. We told the Department of

         23  Buildings, we told the Office of Labor Relations,

         24  that we are willing to get prevailing wage,

         25  regardless of the other inspectors involved, as far
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          2  as within the local. There is a necessity out there,

          3  all of us believe it is a matter of public safety

          4  and we have made a lot of concessions in order to

          5  achieve that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And what was the

          7  response from the City?

          8                 MR. CORSO: We got double zeros.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I gather that is

         10  no money?

         11                 MR. CORSO: No money, okay? The first

         12  two years of the contract were double zeros, they

         13  wouldn't even consider -- and again, we went there

         14  with the Department of Buildings on our side. They

         15  were supporting it, they don't have any power. It is

         16  the Administration, it is the Speaker and the Mayor

         17  that have to concede to this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is there a

         19  shortage of people with the qualifications in the

         20  industry.

         21                 MR. CORSO: There are enough elevator

         22  inspectors out there, the salary range is a

         23  disgrace.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There is no

         25  shortage. So you are saying if DOB was to pay
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          2  comparable competitive salaries, that tomorrow they

          3  could put an ad in the paper and get sufficient

          4  responses to meet their needs?

          5                 MR. CORSO: I believe they would.

          6                 One of the issues that was brought up

          7  earlier dealt with an apprenticeship program. One of

          8  the problems you would have with an apprenticeship

          9  program is that, number one, if you see how intense,

         10  Local 1, the elevator union, if you see the

         11  apprenticeship programs and what is involved in

         12  becoming an elevator inspector, the training

         13  involved in getting that status, there is a lot of

         14  training involved. I don't believe the Department of

         15  Buildings, number one, would be able to provide that

         16  type of training to actually qualify somebody as an

         17  elevator mechanic; and, number two, with the current

         18  salary rates of the Department of Buildings for the

         19  elevator inspectors, well, hell, I would come

         20  on-board, get the training and then go back to the

         21  industry and make $60,000, why would I stay with

         22  you?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, Local 1 has

         24  a trainee program now is what you are saying?

         25                 MR. CORSO: Sure. All of the elevator
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          2  unions have training programs for their

          3  apprenticeships. But they start at a higher salary

          4  than our inspectors do, so even an apprentice

          5  wouldn't want to come over. I mean that is reality.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, it's all

          7  about money.

          8                 MR. CORSO: Pretty much. I mean, why

          9  would you want to take a job that is paying less,

         10  know that you are going to be followed on a regular

         11  basis, everybody -- you are under a gun, you are

         12  under a magnifying glass --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And that doesn't

         14  prevail as the kind of anti-corruption measures?

         15                 MR. CORSO: Well, there are

         16  anti-corruption measures and there are

         17  anti-corruption measures. One is just be able to

         18  come before this Council and say we are doing this

         19  or we are doing that.

         20                 The transfer, in the report it says

         21  that they should rotate people - we have --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We have --

         23                 MR. CORSO: I am just saying --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The

         25  anti-corruption measures that prevail and deal are
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          2  not in use in private industry. The background

          3  checks and all the kind of measures taken to ensure

          4  the integrity.

          5                 MR. CORSO: I am sure there are some

          6  checks involved, but of course not to the extent,

          7  the 12-page report that an individual does to become

          8  an elevator inspector now, listing what every member

          9  of the family or his household does and how much

         10  money they have -- that is not done in the private

         11  sector.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is that a

         13  disincentive to come to work with the City?

         14                 MR. CORSO: Well, it is. But it

         15  wouldn't be if the salary was sufficient. You know,

         16  people don't have a problem with that but why should

         17  they be invaded, their privacy be invaded for

         18  something --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, it would be

         20  conceivable that a person who cannot or could not

         21  pass DOB's background and requirements, integrity,

         22  could go out and be hired by the private industry?

         23                 MR. CORSO: Sure, why not?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, I just

         25  thought I would ask.
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          2                 MR. CORSO: Somebody should review

          3  their integrity program, and as far as the

          4  questionnaires and see is there really a

          5  relationship between corruption and that 12-page

          6  financial document. What my brother is doing, or my

          7  sister is doing living in my household, does that

          8  really impact on me or the type of person I am? I

          9  mean, there is a lot to it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Should we

         11  consider reducing the measures --

         12                 MR. CORSO: No, I am not saying --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: -- Measures in

         14  DOB, or requiring background checks in private

         15  industry.

         16                 MR. CORSO: I don't have a problem

         17  with the background checks. You can leave the

         18  background checks where they are. The crux of the

         19  problem is they are not paid enough.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Have you

         21  reviewed the background requested, information

         22  requested on DOB's applications for certification,

         23  for their inspectors? Have you reviewed --

         24                 MR. CORSO: The requirement?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The 12 pages --
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          2                 MR. CORSO: Yes, I have seen it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you feel some

          4  of the stuff is irrelevant?

          5                 MR. CORSO: I do.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, we need to

          7  have a discussion on that as well.

          8                 MR. CORSO: That is the least of our

          9  problems. Because you could do away with it and you

         10  still are not going to get anybody to be an elevator

         11  inspector because of the ridiculous salary.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         13                 MR. CORSO: There were just two issues

         14  that I did want to touch on; and that is as a result

         15  of the questioning that went back and forth, the

         16  private sector gets $54 an inspection. Nobody does

         17  six inspections. I mean, if you deal with a number

         18  of ten, you are realistic. Those ten inspections,

         19  the private sector gets paid per device. So, those

         20  ten inspections bring in $540, if he is only doing

         21  ten a day, which is typically the minimum. A City

         22  inspector gets that $184, okay? Flat rate, whether

         23  he does ten or 12 or nine, he is only getting that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Or two.

         25                 MR. CORSO: Or two, and you don't have

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  any of them doing two. The productivity, that 40

          3  minutes, the pressure on -- you are getting eight,

          4  nine stops out of an inspector, okay?

          5                 So, just to put it in the proper

          6  perspective when you deal with these numbers, if you

          7  use ten, the private inspector is charging the City

          8  $540 a day for that inspector, the City inspector is

          9  making $183 a day with the fringe, and that is the

         10  type of ratio you should be using.

         11                 One other point is that the

         12  Department of Buildings claims that, well, they are

         13  getting $65 and the inspection is $55 or $54. When

         14  you look at a breakdown of what that $65 represents,

         15  the last time I looked it was about 65 percent of

         16  that dollar amount is inspection money. The

         17  remaining 35 percent is administrative process. So,

         18  $55 is what they are charging for just the

         19  inspection. If you do the mathematics, it is

         20  actually --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So they are

         22  charging too much?

         23                 MR. CORSO: I am not saying they

         24  charge too much, I am just saying that they are

         25  losing a lot more than they think they are. They
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          2  said they made $300,000 or whatever, but it is not

          3  -- they are not figuring in that one-third or that

          4  percentage that is calculated in that amount for the

          5  tremendous administrative costs.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me move

          7  along.

          8                 The report also recommends that DOB

          9  perform so-called double-check inspections, where a

         10  follow-up inspection informs to verify the integrity

         11  of the inspection; does DOB currently, to your

         12  knowledge, double-check inspections of private

         13  elevator inspections?

         14                 And also, does DOB currently perform

         15  double-check inspections of inspections performed by

         16  DOB inspectors?

         17                 MR. CORSO: The Department of

         18  Buildings goes out and I believe the percentage that

         19  they check right now is ten percent of the private

         20  inspectors report, if violations or defects are

         21  reported.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What is the

         23  percentage for their own inspectors?

         24                 MR. CORSO: Their own inspectors,

         25  these supervisors go out and do what is called a TV,
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          2  a training visit. They will go out and they will

          3  pick up the inspector and they will evaluate his

          4  work performance.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is the

          6  practice that is prevailing right now in DOB?

          7                 MR. CORSO: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: To your

          9  knowledge.

         10                 MR. CORSO: To my knowledge.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can I just

         12  ask something on the ten percent?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Go ahead.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You say they

         15  check on ten percent of the --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It is the

         17  self-certification.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The

         19  self-certification, they check on ten percent, but

         20  he said, just to quote him, the ten percent are all

         21  the dangerous --

         22                 MR. CORSO: Well, I think the key

         23  there, and, again, it is something that I tried to

         24  allude to or bring out in my testimony on wording,

         25  when you say they get to 100 percent of all of the
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          2  emergencies or the ones that are extremely hazardous

          3  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The ones that

          5  are hazardous to life and public safety.

          6                 MR. CORSO: So the definition, in

          7  order for them to honestly make a statement that

          8  they are getting to all 100 percent or the complete

          9  amount would be that their definition of an

         10  emergency is one that causes a device to be shut

         11  down, and when the device is shut down the

         12  Department goes back and inspects it before it gets

         13  put back into service.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But aren't

         15  the situations where things are dangerous so it does

         16  cause it to shut down?

         17                 MR. CORSO: Well, it depends on your

         18  definition.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What if you

         20  have a situation where the elevator doesn't stop

         21  properly at the floor and the guy comes in and out

         22  and he could get hurt?

         23                 MR. CORSO: The definition that you

         24  are using is the one that the Department is using,

         25  emergency.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you think

          3  it is a proper definition?

          4                 MR. CORSO: I think it is kind of

          5  narrow.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          8  Marshall.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I recall

         10  this same discussion around the plumbing inspectors;

         11  is that who they were?

         12                 MR. CORSO: We have been through this

         13  with plumbing inspectors, housing inspectors, boiler

         14  inspectors.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: And there

         16  was a complaint there that we are paying too low a

         17  salary and we were not attracting and holding onto

         18  inspectors. We privatized it, that didn't work,

         19  which I didn't think it was going to work.

         20                 Here we are again now with elevators.

         21  Elevator death is terrible.

         22                 MR. CORSO: We have made a lot of

         23  concessions, as far as the union is concerned, in

         24  dealing with elevators. We realized that the nature

         25  of the elevator inspection and the device itself is
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          2  so critical that we had to make concessions, ones

          3  that we normally would not have done for any of the

          4  other titles. And apparently, again, we have been

          5  before this Council, we have heard Commissioner

          6  after Commissioner state in the strongest terms that

          7  inspector salaries are too low.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: We have

          9  heard that.

         10                 MR. CORSO: Well, again and again and

         11  again. We have had opportunities at our last

         12  negotiations, last year in '98, where we had

         13  Commissioner Silva's complete cooperation. We get to

         14  Office of Labor Relations, the only words they know

         15  is pattern bargaining, end of story, you get double

         16  zeros, you get -- I mean, there is no mechanism in

         17  place for true collective bargaining. You have a

         18  situation, the managers, the Commissioners realize

         19  the situation, nobody can get it done and that is

         20  why I am hoping that the Council, the Speaker of the

         21  Council, together with the Mayor --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We recognize the

         23  problem.

         24                 MR. CORSO: -- May be able to do

         25  something.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I don't know

          3  what our powers are, but we are certainly

          4  sympathetic --

          5                 MR. CORSO: They have to be better

          6  than mine.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This Chair and

          8  other Council members have expressed concerns.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Can I just

         10  continue on?

         11                 Most of the time when we talk about

         12  City workers, productivity comes into play, when

         13  they are talking about an increase in raise. Is

         14  there any way that you could respond to that?

         15                 MR. CORSO: First of all, when they

         16  talk productivity, I found it -- I was appalled

         17  actually, by the Commissioner's statement that from

         18  32,000 they went up to 38,000, 37,000 and change,

         19  well they are still making $17.73 at that

         20  calculation. To say they gave a raise was a

         21  disgrace. They are getting an extra hour worth of

         22  work, productivity is up, but it hasn't cost the

         23  City anything as far as the inspector's salary, they

         24  are making the same base salary. I would think that

         25  in order to come across to the Council that
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          2  everything is hunky dorey, possibly between now and

          3  next year they will mandate that the inspectors work

          4  60 hours and at that rate they are the highest paid

          5  elevator inspectors in the City, in the State.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We recognize

          7  that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But are you

          9  saying that you actually gave an hour and you still

         10  didn't get an increase?

         11                 MR. CORSO: They got one hour's more

         12  pay. I mean, that is where the 37,000 -- there was

         13  no magic number. They are working, instead of 1,827

         14  hours a year they are working 2,088 hours a year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Now, do you

         16  also feel that all the inspectors have all the tools

         17  they need to do their inspections?

         18                 MR. CORSO: Well, to do inspections

         19  properly, there are jumpers involved, there is a lot

         20  of things -- the Department of Buildings gives a

         21  flashlight, rule book, hard hat.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But in your

         23  opinion are they thorough in their equipment?

         24                 MR. CORSO: There is more equipment

         25  they need that is not provided to them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In terms of the

          4  tools, do you think they have adequate tools to do

          5  the job?

          6                 MR. CORSO: No, I don't.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You don't?

          8                 MR. CORSO: No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: No, that's

         10  what he said.

         11                 MR. CORSO: They have a flashlight and

         12  a hard hat.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, what about

         14  the pressure to speed up? Are they under pressure?

         15  Do you permit your members to be harassed by

         16  management?

         17                 MR. CORSO: Unfortunately they are,

         18  because they are City employees and it is not a

         19  private union where I can strike. But we do address

         20  the issue. There is constant pressure.

         21                 Again, anybody who goes through the

         22  report and sees the breakdown of that 40-minute

         23  inspection, they are under pressure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are they subject

         25  to disciplinary charges for failing to meet quota?
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          2                 MR. CORSO: Well, there are other ways

          3  to go around that. You say disciplinary, they are

          4  not actually brought up on failure to meet quotas,

          5  but life is made difficult for them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now, what about

          7  the in-service training for DOB elevators? What does

          8  that training consist of? How often does the

          9  training occur, and do you think the training is

         10  meaningful? Beyond the basic requirements that they

         11  bring with them?

         12                 MR. CORSO: Well, the training I heard

         13  of today, the one that they were talking about,

         14  going to Tennessee and the other state, that was

         15  strictly for amusement rides. Four supervisors went

         16  last year, two went this year. As far as actual

         17  training of inspectors, the training procedure now

         18  is possibly once a month at a pay day somebody will

         19  get up and read a training bulletin for ten minutes

         20  and they can come here and tell you that they train

         21  the inspectors.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  My final

         23  question is, does the report -- and you read it and

         24  you did comment on it, again do you feel this report

         25  accurately portrayed the operations of the Elevator
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          2  Division between 1992 and 1996? And are the major

          3  findings still reflective of the operations of the

          4  Department of Buildings?

          5                 MR. CORSO: In my opinion it is, and I

          6  believe that the report reflects the way business is

          7  being done today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And the

          9  accompanying recommendation and legislation?

         10                 MR. CORSO: I have to hesitate on

         11  that. I would have to strongly be against the

         12  reduction in the number of inspections, but as far

         13  as the licensing requirements and the other

         14  segments, we don't have a problem with that at all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Would you

         16  restate your concern about the reduction in the

         17  inspections; is it because coming from your

         18  perspective -- would it be a reduction in jobs?

         19                 MR. CORSO: No. Actually, nothing that

         20  we have done, and we probably go against some of the

         21  stereotypes that are out there as far as what a

         22  union is supposed to do - our union works for the

         23  people of the City of New York, as well as City

         24  inspectors, we have concerns for both, and there is

         25  nothing involved in reducing the number of
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          2  inspections that would impact on the number of

          3  inspectors I have, and even if it did it wouldn't

          4  matter.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you want to

          6  restate your opposition to reducing --

          7                 MR. CORSO: Well, you cannot reduce

          8  the number of, currently the number of inspections

          9  currently required, if you are not going to have a

         10  sufficient staff, you are not going to give the

         11  inspectors adequate time to produce the quality

         12  inspection. The quantity over quality has to stop.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, if we could

         14  guarantee -- I don't know how we guarantee --

         15                 MR. CORSO: I would like to know how

         16  you do that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If the two and

         18  the two every six months would be guaranteed, do you

         19  think that would be adequate? If it were guaranteed

         20  --

         21                 MR. CORSO: No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You still have

         23  objections.

         24                 MR. CORSO: Because one thing that is

         25  not taking into consideration now is that, yes, the
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          2  periodics are supposed to be done every eight

          3  months, and, no, they can't get to them every eight

          4  months. But in buildings that have problems, they

          5  will do a periodic inspection in the building

          6  January, if by July a complaint comes in on that

          7  building about an elevator, when they go out and do

          8  the complaint, they will also do a complete periodic

          9  inspection. So, it is getting two inspections by the

         10  Department -- that particular troubled building is

         11  getting two inspections.

         12                 Until we are at a point where an

         13  elevator inspector can go out and do what he is

         14  supposed to do, take the time, have the tools, check

         15  the device the way he is supposed to check the

         16  device, reducing the number of inspections, I feel

         17  is dangerous.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Marshall, do you have

         20  an additional question?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Of the

         22  63,000 elevators in New York City, how many do DOB

         23  inspect?

         24                 MR. CORSO: About 50 some odd

         25  thousand, 52,000 I think it is.
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          2                 These inspectors also inspect

          3  escalators, which the number is not shown here, and

          4  all the amusement rides in the City of New York. So

          5  we are not just on that 52,000 number for elevators,

          6  there is a lot more involved.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Are they

          8  able to handle 52,000 plus the escalators and the

          9  amusement parks?

         10                 MR. CORSO: The way we think it should

         11  be handled?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I mean are

         13  they able to do the whole job?

         14                 MR. CORSO: It is being done now. It

         15  is being done by using private --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I am sorry,

         17  what did you --

         18                 MR. CORSO: It is being done using

         19  private contractors now to augment the City

         20  inspectors, the number of inspectors. It is not the

         21  way it should be.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, let me

         23  ask you, how much does it cost us when we use

         24  private inspectors?

         25                 MR. CORSO: My numbers show that it is
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          2  mind-boggling.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Okay.

          4                 MR. CORSO: You can pay my inspectors

          5  $100,000 a year and when the dust settles you will

          6  still make money compared to putting out all of

          7  these private contracts.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, maybe

          9  that is the problem.

         10                 MR. CORSO: Well, we haven't been able

         11  to address the issue, the Buildings Commissioners

         12  and Commissioners and Commissioners have not been

         13  able to address the problem. When questioned, nobody

         14  knows where to turn to do it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: It is sort

         16  of sneaky privatization, isn't it?

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Corso, as

         19  always, thank you for your help, and we will look

         20  forward to working with you as we go forward.

         21                 We will hear now from Mr. Michael

         22  Bonardi.

         23                 Mr. Michael Bonardi, Mr. Scott

         24  Schindler, and Mr. Thomas Donovan; are you three

         25  gentlemen here? If you will have a seat at the
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          2  table, we will hear from you. Will you identify

          3  yourself for the record and we will be pleased to

          4  take your testimony.

          5                 MR. BONARDI: Good morning. My name is

          6  Michael Bonardi, and I am here today on behalf of

          7  the National Association of Elevator Contractors.

          8  Thank you for giving us this opportunity.

          9                 I am here today for the sole purpose

         10  of asking that our requests be entered into the

         11  minutes of today's meeting. I would like to take a

         12  moment to read that request.

         13                 Dear Mr. Spigner, the National

         14  Association of Elevator Contractors is an

         15  organization of over 600 private elevator

         16  contracting and manufacturing companies. Our current

         17  membership includes over 70 elevator contractor

         18  companies doing business in the City of New York.

         19                 Our organization would like to

         20  formally request a period of 90 days to allow all of

         21  our members who would be affected an opportunity to

         22  carefully review all suggested changes to the

         23  existing administrative code of the City of New

         24  York.

         25                 We would then like the opportunity as
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          2  a group to propose amendments on the current

          3  legislation being debated.

          4                 In addition, as one of the four

          5  founding members of the Elevator Escalator Safety

          6  Foundation, an organization dedicated to education

          7  of children and senior citizens on the safety use of

          8  elevators and escalators, we would also request that

          9  the legislation include a program to educate the

         10  riding public through public schools, senior citizen

         11  programs and any other suitable forum.

         12                 Thank you for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Bonardi, I

         14  want to thank you also for your interest in this

         15  issue. As I understand now, our staff is scheduled

         16  to meet with representatives of your group and the

         17  elevator industry in general on Monday; are you

         18  aware of that?

         19                 MR. BONARDI: No, I am not. I was

         20  asked to present this request today because our

         21  President and Vice President are unavailable.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In any event,

         23  Mr. Bonardi, we thank you for your comments. Your

         24  group will be given every opportunity to participate

         25  in the discussion. Yes, your concerns will be
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          2  reflected in the legislation.

          3                 No, I can't guarantee you that we are

          4  going to give you 90 days, but as long as it takes

          5  for us to develop what is appropriate and reflects

          6  good public policy, that is how long it is going to

          7  take, and your points, concerns and views will be

          8  given every consideration.

          9                 MR. BONARDI: Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You are more

         11  than welcome.

         12                 Sir.

         13                 MR. SCHINDLER: Hi. I am Scott

         14  Schindler with Pace Elevator. I am representing

         15  myself, my own company.

         16                 I have some issues with the report

         17  that was given. There hasn't been a separation, a

         18  very large separation between City housing elevators

         19  and the amount of accidents they have had versus the

         20  privately owned buildings and elevators.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You mean New

         22  York City Housing Authority buildings?

         23                 MR. SCHINDLER: Yes. There is a

         24  breakdown on the report, but part of the issue of

         25  what I am going to discuss is privately-owned
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          2  business. I don't know anything or claim to know

          3  anything about the Housing Authority and how they

          4  work, all right?

          5                 But one of the issues that isn't

          6  brought up is the separate types of accidents,

          7  work-related accidents, compared to passenger

          8  elevators, you know, passengers in an elevator --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Could you move

         10  the mic a little closer, please, so it will help us

         11  hear you.

         12                 MR. SCHINDLER: Sure.

         13                 Also, proper passenger use on

         14  elevators, meaning an elevator malfunctioning,

         15  versus improper, for lack of another expression,

         16  youth-related horseplay, bypassing an elevator

         17  safety device which sometimes cause entrapments.

         18                 One of the other issues is the use of

         19  a master electrician versus licensed elevator

         20  inspectors. I have mixed feelings on this. Probably

         21  95 percent of the elevator equipment is mechanical

         22  rather than electrical. There is a definite need to

         23  have electricians, licensed electricians inspecting

         24  our elevators. Sounds like a conflict of interest

         25  coming from me, when -- not a conflict of interest,
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          2  but saying that there is no need for it - there is.

          3                 Self-inspection is -- I am going to

          4  bounce around -- is self-serving and should be ended

          5  as far as the elevator industry.

          6                 If we are going to be self-inspection

          7  agencies, we need to have an electrician's license.

          8  If we are not, then the DOB, or whoever is going to

          9  be the overseeing agency should have that elevator,

         10  the electrician's license.

         11                 As of now for an elevator that gets

         12  approved from DOB, they don't inspect electrical.

         13  They will check safety devices, they will make sure

         14  things are mechanically safe, but they don't go over

         15  the electrical code and make sure those things are

         16  up to code per se.

         17                 One of the other issues I have is

         18  naming DOB as an additional insured. If you are a

         19  large company and you are self insured, you can do

         20  that at no cost. Independent companies, smaller

         21  companies, is an additional -- there is not an

         22  additional charge to us for naming somebody's

         23  additional insured, but it cuts the value of the

         24  insurance by half. Half the amount goes to the

         25  elevator company and the other half has to go
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          2  whoever you named.

          3                 This wouldn't be a problem if we have

          4  a contract with the City, but if you don't have

          5  business with them, to insure them is an undue cost.

          6                 I had given a pamphlet called Public

          7  Safety. I found that in Elevator World actually

          8  yesterday. It's an international magazine, an

          9  article for June 1999 in Elevator World. The writer

         10  of this is from Israel but he addresses quite a few

         11  interesting public safety issues.

         12                 I think this is something everybody

         13  should read over, and I think this four-page report

         14  has a lot more facts than the report that we were

         15  given to work with originally.

         16                 Also, before deciding on changing the

         17  industry as a whole, there are problems and

         18  everybody acknowledges that. I think what needs to

         19  be done, and right now I see it is starting to be

         20  done, is for elevator professionals, as well as

         21  public officials to be getting together and I think

         22  we should start some sort of a Committee to find out

         23  what the actual problems are and how to fix them.

         24                 I mean, I have been here since this

         25  meeting started today and everybody is discussing
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          2  salaries and dollar amounts and I know personally if

          3  a mechanic comes to me and says if you raise my

          4  salary I am going to work harder, he is going to get

          5  hired.

          6                 I don't care what they make, they

          7  should be giving 100 percent. Salary may be a

          8  problem for the Department of Buildings, it

          9  shouldn't be an issue when we are talking about

         10  public safety, all right? I think somebody doing a

         11  right job is what needs to be considered.

         12                 That's all I have got.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, it is not

         14  an issue of -- it is an issue of recruiting and

         15  being able to get people to come to work for us,

         16  that is what it is. It is not a question of whether

         17  they are giving 100 percent or 70 percent, it is

         18  just a question of the limitations placed on us by

         19  collective bargaining process.

         20                 Thank you very much, Mr. Schindler.

         21  Certainly we would appreciate a written record of

         22  your recommendations so that they can be referred to

         23  as we go forward?

         24                 MR. SCHINDLER: Sure.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Mr.
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          2  Chairman, can I ask a quick question?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Mr.

          5  Schindler, is that your name?

          6                 MR. SCHINDLER: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: How much do

          8  you pay your elevator inspectors an hour?

          9                 MR. SCHINDLER: It ranges. My

         10  inspectors probably some of them $35 an hour, others

         11  may be getting $30.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is plus

         13  fringes?

         14                 MR. SCHINDLER: No, fringes are

         15  additional.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: No fringes.

         17                 MR. SCHINDLER: No fringes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Quick math, what

         19  does $35 an hour come to, a lot of money, huh?

         20                 All right, thank you, gentlemen.

         21  Let's now go to Mr. Nicholas Montesano. And Mr.

         22  Montesano is our last witness for today's meeting.

         23                 MR. MONTESANO: With that comment I

         24  will move pretty fast, Speaker.

         25                 Nicholas Montesano, representing
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          2  Building Owners and Managers Association of New

          3  York, and I would like to applaud a comment made

          4  earlier by the Chairman that the Building Department

          5  review of possibly reducing fees, I am sure the

          6  Building Owners and Managers would greatly

          7  appreciate that.

          8                 I issued in May some seven or eight

          9  items that the Building Owners and Managers had

         10  concerns with in reference to the legislation, I

         11  would just like to focus on one today, to expedite

         12  the closure of this session, and that would be the

         13  conflict of interest. The way it is written now

         14  would cause hardship to the Building Owners and

         15  Managers.

         16                 When evaluating conflict of interest

         17  in the elevator industry, you have to look at what

         18  type of inspection procedures there are and what the

         19  inspections detail.

         20                 Presently in the majority of all

         21  maintenance contracts and these two and five-year

         22  tests, which are your major inspection tests to

         23  guarantee equipment is safe for the riding public,

         24  are covered in the existing agreement between the

         25  owners and the elevator companies. If in conflict of
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          2  interest we have to introduce a third or even fourth

          3  party, this could cause a hardship in two ways, one,

          4  being the financial and two, the actual logistics of

          5  running and operating a building when numerous

          6  people are performing tests.

          7                 When you have a contract that is

          8  responsible to maintain and keep the equipment safe

          9  order, if he is not the same individual that is

         10  responsible to test it and correct any deficiencies,

         11  you create a system which would allow another

         12  contractor to come in with nothing more to gain by

         13  aggravating the situation and not performing either

         14  a proper inspection or causing trouble during the

         15  inspection which would cause hardship to the

         16  building.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That's a unique

         18  concept, but it's okay. You are entitled to your

         19  views.

         20                 MR. MONTESANO: The point being is we

         21  need a third party that doesn't have a conflict that

         22  could supervise and certify that a test was done

         23  proper, the people who are responsible to maintain,

         24  troubleshoot and keep that equipment operating

         25  properly, we don't need to introduce another party
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          2  to perform some kind of test that could just cause

          3  havoc in the building operation and havoc to the

          4  equipment.

          5                 This conflict could be done with

          6  private individuals, or, again, with an appropriate

          7  Building Department program in place with qualified

          8  inspectors.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me see if I

         10  understand you now. You are objecting to requiring a

         11  different contractor to do --

         12                 MR. MONTESANO: To do a test.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You are

         14  objecting to our objections to the same person

         15  inspecting his or her own work, right?

         16                 MR. MONTESANO: Correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You think that

         18  works well now?

         19                 MR. MONTESANO: Well, no. What I am

         20  objecting to is someone else having to perform that

         21  test and touch the equipment that is not in the

         22  contract with the owner, that is liable or

         23  responsible to keep that equipment running

         24  correctly.

         25                 These tests involve a lot of series
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          2  of mechanical devices to be activated. A lot of

          3  electrical devices to be tested, a lot of things

          4  could go wrong or fail. That is the purpose of the

          5  test, to see what will fail under the test situation

          6  and correct it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So you believe

          8  we should maintain as we have now?

          9                 MR. MONTESANO: Yes, but provide that

         10  there is proper supervision and certification that

         11  the tests are done according to the laws, the code

         12  and regulations in place now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So you want the

         14  tests to be done --

         15                 MR. MONTESANO: By the existing

         16  contractor, but I want them witnessed and certified

         17  by an authorized authority.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That the test

         19  was done, not how well they were done or whether --

         20                 MR. MONTESANO: No. How the test was

         21  done and how well it was done, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All right. We

         23  have to talk some more, all right?

         24                 MR. MONTESANO: Very good.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will have to
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          2  talk some more in an informal setting.

          3                 MR. MONTESANO: Excellent.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Maybe over a cup

          5  of coffee or something.

          6                 MR. MONTESANO: No problem, sir. Right

          7  now I could use a cup.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Any other

          9  comments?

         10                 MR. MONTESANO: That's it. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So that is the

         12  last person who wants to testify today. We have no

         13  additional requests for opportunities to discuss

         14  this matter, and that being so, then this meeting is

         15  adjourned until further notice.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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